MANIAN & RAO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ASAP INFO SYSTEMS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March,
2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.,

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based
on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to-obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on

N\ \i\/ _,.f’ &1y No.361, | Floor, 7th Cross,
NS I Block Jayanagar, Bangalore - 560 011.
Ph: +91 80 26569500

Telefax: +91 80 26569501

Email: contact@manian-rao.com



the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2017, and its profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company has does not have any pending litigations as on 31* March
2017;




ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial
statements as regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as
defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated the 8th November, 2016 of
the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8th November 2016 to 30t
December 2016. Based on audit procedures performed and the
representations provided to us by the management we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the
Company and as produced to us by the Management.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001983S
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Paresh Daga ( '.';?_}]
Partner NEaN_ / '-5.’;:’.:"
M.No. 211468 Oy

Place : Bangalore

Date : 17" May 2017



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ASAP INFO
SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001983S

Paresh Daga
Partner
M.No. 211468

Place : Bangalore

Date : 17" May 2017



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner over a period of 3 (three) years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(i) As explained to us, the company does not hold any inventories, accordingly reporting
under paragraph (ii) of the order does not apply.

(iii)  The company had granted interest free loans to the parties covered in the register
maintained U/s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. As at 31/03/2017 all these loans
have been repaid and there is no outstanding.

(iv)  The Company has granted loans where in provision of section 185 & 186 have not
been complied, details of the same is as under:

Provisions not Nature of Non Compliance Maximum Amount
complied Amount outstanding
outstanding as on
during the 31.03.2017
- - year (INR) (INR)
Section 185 & i. Loan to Directors given in 1,51,49,709/- | Nil
186 contravention of provisions of
Section 185

ii. Interest not charged in accordance
with section 186 (7)

Section 185 & i. Loan to personsin whom directors | 10,92,44,851/- | Nil

186 are interested in contravention of
provision of section 185.

ii. Interest not charged in accordance
with section 186 (7)

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits.




(viii)

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Labour Welfare Fund, Professional
Tax, Employee’s State Insurance, Service Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. However delays were
observed in payments of statutory dues during the period April 2016 to August
2016.

(b) As on March 31, 2017 the company had undisputed statutory dues outstanding
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Details
of the same is as under:

Nature of Dues - Amount Involved (INR)
Tax Deduction at source including interest thereon _ 51,15,986
Provident Fund S - L 18,91,712
Professional Tax ~1,25,760
| Service Tax including interest thereon 19,67,523
Employee’s State Insurance - 1,66,259 |

(c) Details of dues of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Labour Welfare Fund, Professional
Tax, Employee’s State Insurance, Service Tax, cess which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2017 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Dues Forum Period to Amount
Statute where which the Involved
Dispute is Amount (INR)
- Pending Relates

The Income | Income Tax CIT (A) A.Y.2007-08 | 33,50,670/-
Tax Act, 1961 I I
The Income | Income Tax CIT (A) A.Y.2014-15 | 34,73,920/-
Tax Act, 1961

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.



(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001983S

Paresh Daga
Partner

M.No. 211468
Place : Bangalore

Date : 17" May 2017



ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 8,50,200 8,50,200
Reserves and Surplus 4 679,65,297 470,79,700
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Provisions 5 28,38,287 54,03,028
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings 6 14,94,341 743,01,254
Other Current Liabilities 7 635,48,869 899,33,475
Short-Term Provisions 8 41,55,890 8,07,488
Total 1408,52,884 2183,75,145
Il. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets 9

Tangible Assets 105,34,376 133,52,411

Intangible Assets 13,66,013 -
Non-Current investments 10 - 160,00,000
Deferred Tax Asset 11 45,21,756 19,06,321
Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 50,76,492 21,45,852
Current Assets
Trade Receivables 13 492,21,791 832,37,970
Cash and Bank Balances 14 52,26,322 69,93,309
Short-Term Loans and Advances 15 561,96,775 921,64,662
Other Current Assets 16 597,09,359 25,74,620
Total 1408,52,884 2183,75,145
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date.

Foj and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Qlebaduns

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001983S

Paresh Daga A N. Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Partner NS Director Director
Membership No: 211468 DIN: 07332234 DIN: 00151814

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017




ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees

Revenue Notes

Revenue from Operations {(Gross)

6950,78,158

6908,32,158

Less: Service Tax 570,73,750 539,91,122
Revenue from Operations (Net}) 17 6380,04,408 6368,41,036
Other Income 18 44,09,709 3,72,186
Total Revenue 6424,14,117 6372,13,222
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 19 5337,67,995 4934,03,465
Finance Costs 20 168,69,885 125,422,311
Depreciation Expense 21 37,14,587 20,48,481
Other Expenses 22 491,84,509 350,27,442
Total Expenses 6035,36,976 5430,21,699
Profit before exceptional items and tax 388,77,141 941,91,523
Less: Exceptional item
Provision for diminution in the value of investments = 600,00,000
Profit before Tax 388,77,141 341,91,523
Tax Expense
Current Tax 206,06,978 355,06,770
Deferred Tax (net) (26,15,434) (20,16,374)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 208,85,597 7,01,127
Earnings Per Equity Share (Nominal Value per Equity 25
share - Rs 10)

Basic and Diluted 245.66 8.25
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our audit report of even date.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants or and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 0019835 .
Ngw

N. Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli

'.Paresh Daga

Partner Director Director
DIN: 00151814

Membership No: 211468 DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017




ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

* Refer Note 14.

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
A Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before Tax 388,77,141 341,91,523
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37,14,587 20,48,481
Interest paid on bank loans and others 168,69,885 125,42,311
Profit on sale on fixed assets (Net) (3,47,368)
Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments - 600,00,000
Loss on sale of long term Investments (Net) 40,000
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (Net) 1,66,015
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back (8,42,517)
Sundry balances written back (35,67,192) 66,759
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 87,37,362 -
Provision for gratuity - -
Provision for leave encashment 2,53,825 55,72,642
TDS Receivables written off 48,62,922 -
Prior period items = -
Operating income before working capital changes 691,12,028 1140,74,348
Changes in working capital:
Increase in other current liabilities (228,17,414) 149,19,496
Increase in short term and long term provisions (93,22,880) -
{Increase) in other current assets (571,34,739) (25,74,620})
(Increase} in trade receivable 259,55,319 (435,37,885)
(Increase)/ decrease in long term loans and advances {29,30,640) 14,39,241
{increase) in short term loans and advances 90,96,416 (137,20,218)
Cash generated from operations 119,58,090 706,00,363
Taxes (paid) / refunded (net) (156,17,184) (301,57,855)
Net cash (used in)/generated from Operating Activities (A) (36,59,094) 404,42,508
B Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of tangible assets (22,62,565) (109,97,109)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets - 15,78,699
Sale of Non- Current Investments 159,60,000 -
Repayment of loans and advances from related parties 677,72,081 -
Loans and advances given to related parties 100,99,390 (778,71,471)
Net cash (used in) investing activities {B) 915,68,906 (872,89,881)
C Cash flow from Financing Activities :
Proceeds from short term borrowings(Net) (728,06,914) 654,33,318
Interest paid on bank loans and others (168,69,885) {125,42,311)
Net cash generated from Financing Activities (C) (896,76,799) 528,91,007
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) (17,66,987) 60,43,634
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 69,93,309 9,49,675
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 52,26,322 69,93,309
Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of
Cash on hand 1,541 3,031
Balances with Banks*
In Current Accounts 52,24,781 69,90,278
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 52,26,322 69,93,309

Notes
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting

Standard-3 on "Cash Flow Statements".

2 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year
classification.

3 Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo / income.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants
Firm R g{istrat‘lon Number: §019835

Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli

Paresh Daga N. Ravi Vishwanath

Partner
Membership No: 211468

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

Director
DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

Director
DIN: 00151814




ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. General Information

ASAP Info Sysytems Private Limited (the "Company") is a HR Services Company incorporated on December 29, 1998. The
Company currently provides clients, solution for their staffing requirements.

The shares of the Company was fully purchased by TeamlLease Staffing Services Private Limited w.e.f September 01,

2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 till the Standards of Accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by
Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these financial
statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section
211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and
liabilities.
ii. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements and
the reported income and expenses during the reported period. The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which results are known or materialized.

jii. Tangible Assets:
Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

The useful life of asset used for below class of assets is taken less than the prescribed life as per Schedule Il based on
management estimates:

a. Electrical Equipment - 8 years

b. Compressor - 8 years

c. Motor Bike - 8 years

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net
book value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, losses arising from retirement of, and gains or losses arising from
disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under
Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 except as above. The residual value of all assets is assumed as five percent of the

original cost of the asset.

iv. Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, whic
—that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cg
‘until_such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other §brro
Vrecqgnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

NS




ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

V. Impairment of Assets:

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible or intangible)
may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets, is
considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset/cash generating unit is made.

Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

vi. Investments:

Investments are classified into long term investments and current investments. Investments that are readily realisable
and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is
lower. Long term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline,
other than temporary, in the value of investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment
individually.

vii. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from Manpower services is accounted on accrual basis on performance of the service agreed in the
Contract / Mandate Letter between the Company and its customer.

Other Income:

Profit/ (Loss) arising from the sale of investments is recognized on trade date basis; net of expenses. The cost of
investment is computed on weighted average basis.
Net Revenue excludes Service Tax and other statutory levies.

viii. Employee Benefits:

a) Provident Fund

Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company
has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry
any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Contribution as required by the Statute made to the Government Provident Fund is debited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The Company has a defined contribution plan for post employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund.
Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government administered provident fund on behalf of the
employees. The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. Contributions to Provident Fund
are made in accordance with the statute, and are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

b} Gratuity
The Company’s gratuity scheme (the “Gratuity Plan”) is a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees in accordance

with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit

method) at the end of each vear.
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they afi




ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

ix. Current and Deferred Tax:

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or
loss for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with

the taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred

tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if

any.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax
and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing

taxation laws.
Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that

the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence
to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

X. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

xi. Leases:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the
terms of the agreement and the effect of lease equalisation is not given considering the increment is on account of
inflation factor.

xii. Segment Reporting
The Company operates only in one segment, hence segmental reporting is not applicable.

xiii.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

xiv. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the
Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable
tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares

\j\/welghted average number of shares outstandlng during the period is adjusted for the effects of j#

eatntv shares.
Q™



ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit

and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

3 SHARE CAPITAL As At As At
March 31, March 31,
2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
Authorised
2,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 20,00,000 20,00,000
20,00,000 20,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
85,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 8,50,200 8,50,200
8,50,200 8,50,200
3.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Equity Shares Number of Rupees Number of | Rupees
Shares Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 85,020 8,50,200 85,020 | 8,50,200
Balance as at the end of the year 85,020 8,50,200 85,020 | 8,50,200
3.2 Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholding.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
3.3 Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company.
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Number of % holding Number of | % holding
Shares Shares
Lakshmi Suthaa K - 51,012 60
K.J. Suwresh - - 34,008 40
TeamlLease Staffing Services Private Limited* 85,020 100 + o
(including its nominee)
*On August 31, 2016, TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited (TSSPL) became the holding company holding
100% of the share capital of the Company. One equity share is held by Mr. N Ravi Vishwanath as a nominee of
TSSPL.
3.4 There are no shares reserved for issue under options as on March 31, 2017 and for the previous year.
3.5 There are no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during
the period of five years immediately preceding the year ended March 31, 2017.
3.6 There are no shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the year
ended March 31, 2017.
3.7 There are no securities that are convertible into equity / preference shares.

v o AN
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of

Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit/(Loss) for the year

Balance as at the end of the year
LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 29 a)
Leave Encashment Payable

Total

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loans-Fullerton India Credit Co. Ltd
Unsecured Loan - Banks
Unsecured Loans -Others

Total

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors
Employees Benefits Payable
Statutory dues

Advance from Customers
Other Liabilities

Total

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Taxation

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 29 a)
Leave Encashment Payable

Audit Fees Payable

Total

As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees

470,79,700 463,78,573
208,85,597 7,01,127
679,65,297 470,79,700
As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
13,72,002 47,34,605
14,66,285 6,68,423
28,38,287 54,03,028
As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
362,90,466
- 132,71,362
14,94,341 247,39,426
14,94,341 743,01,254
As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
64,43,047 14,65,680
376,05,103 320,24,019
188,02,788 562,93,776
14,983 =
6,82,948 1,50,000
635,48,869 899,33,475
As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
22,60,297 6,37,874
4,48,365 1,69,614
9,05,978 -
5,41,250 -
41,55,890 8,07,488
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for

the year ended March 31, 2017

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Face As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Value Number Number Rupees
Other than Trade Investments (At Rupees
Cost)
Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiaries (Fully
paid-up)
Lakshmi Car Zone Private Limited 10 = 76,00,000 760,00,000
Less:Provision for diminution in the value of
. (600,00,000)
investments
Total = 76,00,000 160,00,000
Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments
-At Book Value 760,00,000
Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of Investments 600,00,000
DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET) As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Deferred Tax Asset:
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 33,77,655 7,67,382
Difference between Book and Tax
Depreciation (2,42,109) (7,03,544)
Provision for employee benefits
--Gratuity 6,01,868 16,21,482
--Leave Encashment 7,84,342 2,21,001
Total 45,21,756 19,06,321
LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Security Deposits
Rental Deposits 50,54,640 21,24,000
Other Deposits 21,852 21,852
Total 50,76,492 21,45,852
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for

the year ended March 31, 2017

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Qutstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from

the date they are due for payment
Unsecured considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Outstanding for a period less than 6 months from

the date they are due for payment
Unsecured considered good

Less:Bills Discounted (Refer Note 13.1 below)
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total

Hypothecation by way of first and exclusive charge on all present and future book debts.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

{a) Cash And Cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with banks:

In Current Accounts

Total

SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured considered good

Other Loans and Advances

Advances recoverable in Cash or in kind or for
value to be received

Loans and Advances to Related Parties
Prepaid Expenses

Advances to Staff

Total

The breakup of Loans and Advances to Related
Parties is as below:

Advances to Related Parties:
Receivable From Directors

Lakshmi Car Zone Pvt Ltd
Total

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unbilled Revenue
Total

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

37,18,304

(37,18,304)

778,60,020

(286,38,229)

64,97,510

(64,97,510)

492,21,791

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

1,541

52,24,781
52,26,322

As At

March 31, 2017
Rupees

28,88,595

16,08,421
6,99,759

51,96,775

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

As At

March 31, 2017
Rupees

597,09,359
597,09,359

As At
March 31, 2016
Rupees

1138,26,017
(305,88,047)
23,20,969
(23,20,969)

832,37,970

As At

March 31, 2016
Rupees

3,031

69,90,278
69,93,309

As At
March 31, 2016
Rupees

115,96,527

778,71,471
18,35,759

8,60,905

921,64,662

As At
March 31, 2016

Rupees

121,49,025
657,22,446

778,71,471

As At

March 31, 2016
Rupees

25,74,620
25,74,620
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for

the year ended March 31, 2017

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(Net of Service Tax)

Sale of Services

Total

OTHER INCOME

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)

Sundry Balances Written Back

Provision for doubtful Debts No Longer Required
Written Back

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus (Refer Note 19.1)
Directors' Remuneration

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Gratuity and Leave Encashment

(Refer Note 19.1 & 19.2)

Employee Insurance

Staff Welfare

Total

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

6380,04,408
6380,04,408

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Rupees

35,67,192

8,42,517

44,09,709

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

5154,68,479
18,00,000
138,48,297
2,53,825

10,12,041
13,85,353

5337,67,995

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees

6368,41,036
6368,41,036

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016

Rupees
3,47,368
24,818

3,72,186

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees

4808,26,578
24,00,000
25,00,752
55,72,642

1,24,176
19,79,317

4934,03,465

Employee Benefits Expense for the Year Ended March 31,2017 and March 31, 2016 includes prior period salary of Rs.70,00,000

and Rs.28,84,340 respectively.

Gratuity and Leave Encashment liability is provided as per the Actuarial valuation reports obtained for the Year Ended March

31, 2017.
Gratuity

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to Fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line
with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is paid at the time of separation from the Company or retirement,
whichever is earlier. The benefits vest in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Leave Encashment

Every employee is entitled to a leave encashment of 15 days of Paid Leave (Maximum carry forward of 30 days) calculated on
gross pay. The same is paid at the time of separation from the Company or Retirement whichever is earlier.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Loans
Other borrowing costs
Total

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

Depreciation

Total

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2017
Rupees

113,36,564
55,33,321
168,69,885

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Rupees

37,14,587

37,14,587

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2016
Rupees

112,94,717
12,47,594
125,42,311

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016

Rupees

20,48,481

20,48,481
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for

the year ended March 31, 2017

OTHER EXPENSES

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Fines & Penalties

Loss on sales of [nvestments
Electricity

Traveling and Conveyance

Repairs and maintenance

-Plant and Machinery

-Others

Printing and Stationery
Communication

Legal and professional

TDS Receivable Written Off

Interest on Income Tax Paid
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note 22.1)
Advertisement and Business Promotion
Postage and Courier

Foreign Exchange Loss

Security Charges

Bank Charges

Sundry balances written off
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
Office Expenses

Total

Auditors' Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Other Fees

Total

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Contingent Liability

-Bills Discounting

-Income Tax Notice AY 2014-15
-Income Tax Notice AY 2007-08

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

78,87,814
71,70,061
5,04,511
40,000
8,87,859
48,62,047

7,27,565
12,64,439
2,65,604
28,03,872
64,89,546
48,62,922
6,20,687
6,25,000
2,94,218
98,611
1,66,015

51,066

87,37,362

8,25,310

491,84,509

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2017
Rupees

3,50,000
50,000
2,25,000

6,25,000

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
286,38,229
34,73,920
33,50,670

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees

46,99,250
55,44,446
8,99,930
6,35,272
34,62,287

1,17,212
19,83,517
2,41,790
21,97,190
119,88,580

1,50,000
4,76,140

94,314
32,789
66,759
23,20,969

1,16,997

350,27,442

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees

1,20,000
30,000

1,50,000

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
305,88,047

During the financial year ended March 31, 2017 the Company received Income Tax notice u/s 143(3) for the above assessment
years against which appeal has been filed by the Company.The matter is pending as on date.

EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

(a) Earning in Foreign Currencies
Staffing Income

(b} Expenditure in Foreign Currencies
Per Diem Allowances

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Equity Shares:
- For Basic and Diluted

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Earning per Share (EPS) (In Rupees)
- Basic and Diluted (Face Value of Rs. 10 each)

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

99,41,955

47,88,724

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

208,85,597

85,020
10

245.66

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2016
Rupees

7,01,127

85,020
10

8.25



ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

26 LEASES

(a) The Company has taken on operating lease office premises at various locations and rents are accounted as
per the agreement.

(b) Rent payments are recognised in the Statements of Profit and Loss under the head "Rent" in Notes 22 "Other
Expenses" for the year ended March 31, 2017 amounting to Rs. 78,87,814 (Previous year: Rs 46,99,250).

(¢} The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Minimum Lease Rental Payable As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Within 1 year 56,09,189 Nil
Later than one year but not later than 5 147,09,275 Nil
year
More than 5 years Nil Nil

27 DUES TO MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The above information regarding micro and small enterprises
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

{a) Related parties where control exists:
Nature of Relationship

Ultimate Holding Company Teamlease Services Limited (‘'TLSL')
*Ultimate Holding company w.e.f September 01, 2016.

Holding Company TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited ('TSSPL')
*Holding company w.e.f September 01, 2016.

Subsidiary Company Lakshmi Car Zone Private Limited ('LCZPL'}
*Ceased to be the subsidiary company w.e.f July 19, 2016.
(b) Other Related Parties:

Key Management personnel Mr. K J Suwresh - Director (Resigned w.e.f August 31, 2016)
Mrs. K Lakshmisuthaa - Director (Resigned w.e.f August 31, 2016)

Non-Executive Directors Mrs. Shilpa Kamlesh Avarsekar (w.e.f November 08, 2016)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli {w.e.f August 31, 2016)
Mr. Narayan Swamy Ravi Vishwanath (w.e.f August 31, 2016)

Enterprise over which Key Management ASAP Services Private Limited ('ASPL')*
Pl o Personnel are able to exercise significant  *Ceased w.e.f August 31, 2016
Linfluence with whom transactions have

W H’;aken place %_,
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

ended March 31, 2017

29 a) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - GRATUITY (Un-funded)

The following tables summarize the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

and the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet for the Gratuity.

Disclosure relating to actuarial valuation of Gratuity:

I. Assumptions
Discount Rate
Expected Return On Plan Assets

Mortality

Future Salary Increases
Attrition
Retirement

1l. Change in Present Value Benefit Obligation:
Present Value Of obligation at the beginning of the year

Adjustment to present value

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Transfer In

Actuarial (gain) loss on Obligation

Present Value Of obligation at the end of the year

1Il. Actuarial gain (loss) recognized

{V. Balance Sheet Recognition

Present Value Of Obligation

Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Liability (assets)

Unrecognised Past Service Cost

Liability (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

V. Expenses Recognition

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return On plan assets

Net Actuarial gain (loss) recognised in the year
Past Service Cost

Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss*

VI. Movements in the liability recognised in Balance Sheet
Opening net Liability

Adjustment to Present Value

Expenses

Contribution

Transfer In

Closing Net Liability

VIL. Current and Non-Current Liability
Current
Non-current

ViIl. Experience adjustment
Experience adjustment on Plan assets
Experience adjustment on Plan assets
Assumption Change

Total experience adjustment

Core Employees
As at
March 31, 2017
6.46% p.a.
N/A
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimate
8% p.a
39% p.a.
58 yrs.

19,72,193

1,27,404
5,00,511

(12,91,164)
13,08,944

12,91,164

13,08,944

13,08,944

13,08,944

5,00,511
1,27,404

(12,91,164)

(6,63,249)

19,72,193

(6,63,249)

13,08,944

3,85,682
9,23,262

(11,44,576)
NA

(1,46,588)

(12,91,164)

* In addition to above the Company has provided gratuity towards the outgoing directors amounting to

Consultants Combined Report

As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
6.25% p.a. 7.70% p.a.
N/A N/A

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

Ultimate Ultimate
8% p.a 8% p.a
49% p.a. 10% p.a.
58 yrs. 58 yrs.
29,32,026 26,61,485
1,80,660 2,07,596
3,27,013 19,59,327
(82,933)
(28,45,343) 75,811
5,11,423 49,04,219
28,45,343 (75,811)
5,11,423 49,04,219
5,11,423 49,04,219
5,11,423 49,04,219
3,27,013 19,59,327
1,80,660 2,07,596
(28,45,343) 75,811
(23,37,670) 22,42,734
29,32,026 26,61,485
(23,37,670) 22,42,734
(82,933) -
5,11,423 49,04,219
62,683 1,69,614
4,48,740 47,34,605
(6,48,667) (2,81,277)
NA NA
{21,96,676) -

(28,45,343) 2,81,277)
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ASAP INFO SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Segment Reporting:

Primary Segment:The Business segment has been considered as the Primary Segment for disclosure. The
Company is in the business of providing manpower services. Accordingly there are no reportable segments as per
AS 17 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

Geographical Segment:The Company operates in one Geographical segment namely " within India" and hence no
separate information for Geographical Segment wise disclosure required.

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period November 08, 2016 to December
30, 2016

Other
Particulars SBNs denomination Total

notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 = 51,541 51,541
(+) Permitted receipts - - -
(-) Permitted payments - -
(-) Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 B 51,541 51,541

Previous Year Figures
Figures of previous year have been regrouped, re-arranged and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the
Current Period's Classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signatures to Note Number 1 to 32 forming part of the Financial Statements.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Direffors

Firm Registration Number: 0019835 \
QWSS —

Paresh Daga . Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli N. Ravi Vishwanath

Partner edis Director Director

Membership No: 211468 DIN: 00151814 DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017 Date : May 17, 2017




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF I1JT Education Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIJT Education Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
including the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji

Mumbai - 400 028

T: +91 (22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804 / 07

Chartere ycountants

A
.? .
"'012@““51

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership¥ bkt '|€m1§-_ 1 i

with effect from July 25, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAl registration number is 012754 N
number before conversion was 012754N)

Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 11A Vishnu Digambar Marg, New Delhi 110 002




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of IIJT Education Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 2 of 3

7.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.

10.

(a

(b)

()

(d

(e)

®

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter
referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of
the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure A.

s Chartered 4.~
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of IIJT Education Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 3 0f 3

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance

il

iii.

iv.

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 20;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2017.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2017.

The Company did not have any holdings or dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 — Refer Note 26.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

N\

Arvind Daga

Place: Bangalore Partner
Date: May 18, 2017 Membership Number 108290



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of IIJT Education Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2017

Page1of3

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

1, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIJT
Education Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of IIJT Education Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2017

Page 2 0of 3

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7a Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of IIJT Education Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2017

Page 30f 3
Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

v
A7
Arvind Daga
Place: Bangalore Partner
Date: May 18, 2017 Membership Number 108290



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
IIJT Education Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March
31, 2017

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

vii.

The Company doesn’t have any fixed asset. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of
the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and
(iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax, though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, service tax, professional tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the particulars of dues of income tax as at March 31, 2017
which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to which | Forum where the
statute (Rs.) the amount relates | dispute is pending
Income tax, | Income tax 2,284,370 Assessment year CIT(Appeals)
1961 2011-12
Income tax, | Income tax 960,076 Assessment  year | CIT(Appeals)
1961 2013-14
Kolkata Property tax 3,416,100 October 01, 2014 | The High Court of
Municipal to March 31,2016 | Calcutta
Corporation, (Refer Note 20 (c)
1880 of the financial

statements)
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph g of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of ITJT
Education Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Page 2 of 2

viii.

x1.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the
provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to
public companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under
Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

~
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Arvind Daga
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Place: Bangalore Partner
Date: May 18, 2017 Membership Number 108290



I1JT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings

Trade Payables
- Tota!l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provislons
Total

II. ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Long term Loans and Advances
Other Non Current Assets

Current Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Bank Balances
Short Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
Total

Significant Accounting Policies

As at As at
Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
3 80,000,000 80,000,000
4 (63,186,759) (65,798,653)
5 8,130,293 12,760,574
6 277,000 341,048
7 2,874,790 2,679,802
8 73,873 33,396
28,169,197 30,016,167
9 3,014,804 3,310,630
10 - -
11 20,235 20,235
12 374,721 3,879,754
13 681,349 593,351
14 24,078,088 22,212,197
28,169,197 30,016,167
2

The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. - 012754N/N500016

X

Arvind Daga
Partner
Membership No: 108290

Piace : Bangalore

Date : V{AY | @ 20)¥

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

QW
Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Director

DIN : 00151814

N )
V - \/\XMD;--.{:.../T/LG'JL,—-\_—-_

Vishwanathan Venkataraman
Company Secretary
CSN: 7078

Place : Bangalore

Date : MAY 19,2013

Director
DIN: 00005597



IIJT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees

Re.v_enug
Other Income 15 4,240,061 6,959,644
Total Revenue 4,240,061 6,959,644
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 16 470,677 430,400
Other Expenses 17 1,157,490 1,385,088
Total Expenses 1,628,167 1,815,488
Profit before Tax 2,611,894 5,144,156
Tax Expense - =
Profit for the year 2,611,894 5,144,156
Earning Per Equity Share (Nominal Value per Equity share ~ Rs 10) 1B

Basic and Diluted 0.33 0.64

Signlificant Accounting Policles 2
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financlal Statements.

This Is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Flrm Registration No. - 012754N/N500016

s gl )A\Zg'c}'/

Arvind Daga Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli Shilpa Ava

Partner Dlrector Director
Mambarship No: 108290 DIN : 00151814 DIN: DOO05597
V. \/:M%
Vishwanathan Venkataraman
Company Secretary
CSN: 7078
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore

Date : Hay l?,zoﬂ' Date : MAY €, 20\ %



I1JT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year anded
March 31, 2017

Rupees
A Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax 2,611,894
Adjustments for :
Interest on fixed deposit (2,801)
Pravision for doubtful debts no ionger required written back
Sundry balances written back -
Sundry balances written off 3.384
Bad debts written off E
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,612,477
Adiustment for changes in working capital:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (64,048)
Increase / (decrease) in ather current liabilities 194,988
Increase / (decrease) In Short term provisions 40,477
Decrease / (increase) in long term loans and advances 41,309
Decrease in trade recelvable -
(Increase) / decrease in short term loans and advances (87,998)
Decrease / (Increase) in other current assets {1,905,293)
Cash (used in) / nenerated from Qperations 831,912
Taxes paid (254,517
Net cash (used In) / generated from operating activities (A) 1,086,329
B Cash flow from investing activities:
Proceeds from Fixed deposits 100,000
Interest received on fixed deposit 38,819
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 138,819
€ Cash flow from financing activities :
Repayment of short term borrowings (4,630,281)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (4,630,281)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (3,405,033)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beqinning of the year 3,779,754
Cash and cash equivaient at the end of the year 374,721
Cash and cash equivalent comprises of
Balances with banks - current account 374,721
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 374,721

Motes

For the year endad
March 31, 2016
Rupees

5,144,156

(43,400)
(2,696,652)
(19,592)
335,284
2,719,796
171,300
225,372
480,260

2,716,244
(12,228)

6,300,744
(256,340}
‘6,044,404

454,618
125,919
580,537
(6,445,852)

(6,445,852)

179,089
3,600,665

3,779,754

3,779,754

3,779,754

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting

Standard-3 on “Cash Flow Statements”,
2 Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo / income.

3 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the current

perlod’s classification.
4 The accompanying notes are an intearal part of the Financial Statements,

This Is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Prica Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Reglstration No. - 012754N/N500016

Ashok Kumar N;durumalll

Director
DIN : 00151814

Arvind Daga
Partner
Membership No: 108290

V- \:ﬂM-W‘D‘M"

Vishwanathan Venkataraman
Company Secretary
CSN: 7078

Place : Bangalore

Date : MpY 18,200 ¥

Place : Bangalore

Date: MAY | 9( wlt

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Avﬁ‘/

Shilpa Avarsekar
Director

DIN: 00005597



IIJT Education Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March

31, 2017.

General Information

IIJT Education Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated to be in the
business of imparting specialised vocation courses/training in three different
formats viz. Retail Learning Solution, Corporate training and Institutional training
Solutions. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of TeamLease Services Limited
("TeamLease”). As at April 1, 2010 the Retail Learning Solution business of the
Company was de-merged with TeamLease pursuant to an order of the Mumbai High
court. With effect from April 1, 2012, the company divested the Corporate and
Institutional Training Division (C&IT) Business to TeamlLease.

Summary of Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7
of the Companies Accounts Rules, 2014 till the Standards of Accounting or any
addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation with and
after examination of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the exIsting
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to
apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply with
all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C)
of the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between
the rendering of services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current — non current classification of assets and liabilities.

b) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements
and the reported income and expenses during the reported period. Management
believes that the estimates used In preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which results are known or materialized.
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I1JT Education Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March

31, 2017.

c) Property, Plant & Equipment - Tangible:

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditures related to an item
of fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use or held for disposal are
stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are shown
separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is recognized immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Losses arising from retirement of, and gains or
losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
The residual value of all assets is assumed as zero based on historical trend of the
Company. Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the period of lease. Assets
costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

d) Intangible assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible Assets are recognised only if
it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to assets will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated future
lives. A rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not
exceed ten year from the date when the asset is available for use is considered by
the management. The amortization period and the amortization method are
reviewed at each financial year end and if the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed

accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

e) Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs include interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognlzed in the Statement of Profit and 5 in the period in which they
are mcurrgd
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IIJT Education Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March

31, 2017.

f) Impairment of Assets:

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any
indication that an asset (tangible or intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows
from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If
any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable
amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher
of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the asset and its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment
is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer
exist or may have decreased.

g) Foreign Currency Transactions:

On initial recognition, all transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair
value or other similar valuation denominate din foreign currency are reported using
the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of
accounting period. Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary
items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

h) Revenue Recognition:

Other Income:

» Interest income on fixed deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

* Rental income is accounted on accrual basis as per the terms of the
agreement. Rent equalization is considered only if the agreement is non-
cancellable for more than one year and the incremental rent is fixed over
the term of the agreement.

* Net Income excludes Service Tax and Value Added Tax (VAT).
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I1JT Education Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March
31, 2017.

i) Employee Benefits:
i. Provident Fund

Contribution as required by the Statute made to the Government Provident Fund is
debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has a defined
contribution plan for post-employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund.
Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government
administered provident fund on behalf of the employees. The Company has no
further obligation beyond making the contributions. Contributions to Provident Fund
are made in accordance with the statute, and are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

ii. Gratuity

The employees of the Company are entitled for Gratuity as per the policy of the
Company. The liability in respect of Gratuity that accrues to employees as at the
year-end is ¢charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an undiscounted basis.

iii. Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled for compensated absences and leave
encashment as per the policy of the Company. The liability in respect of unutilised
leave balance that accrues to employees as at the year-end is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an undiscounted basis.

j) Taxes on Income:

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included
in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period.

i. Current tax is determined as the amount of tax expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to
settle the assets and the liabilities on a net basis,

ii. Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax asset, on timing difference being the difference between
taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. In situations where the
Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred
tax assets are recognized in books of accounts only to the extent that there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised
by the Company. Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company re-assesses
unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against
liabilities representing the current tax and where the deferred tax and liabilities

relate o taxes on Income levied by the sa e’g‘ﬁvernlng taxation laws.
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II1JT Education Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March
31, 2017.

k) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

) Leases:

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments/ receipts are recognised as an expense/ income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

m) Earnings Per Share:

The Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year. Earnings
considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for
the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the
purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share the net profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the reporting year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

n) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash an equivalent includes cash in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

IIIT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

anded March 31, 2017

SHARE CAPITAL As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rupees Rupees
Authorised
10,000,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100,000,000 100,000,000

100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
8,000,000- Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 80,000,000 80,000,000

80,00 80,000
Raconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
| Number of Shares Amount | Number of Shares Amount

At the beginning and at the end of the year 2,000,000 60,000,000 | €,000,000 80,000,000

Rights, Preferencas and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per
share. In the avent of liquidation, the eqully shareholders are ellgibie to recelve the remaining assets of the Company after distribution

of all preferential amounts, In praportion to their shareholding.

Shares held by Haolding Company

Name of the sharahold As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
. Number of Shares Amount Mumber of Shares A

TeamLease Services Limited and Its Nominee 8,000,000 80,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000
Total 8,000,000 80,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000
Details of shares held by the shareholders holding maore than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company.

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016

Number of Shares % holding Number of Shares % holding

TeamlLease Services Limited and its Nominee 8.000.000 100% 8,000,000 100%
Total B 8,000,000 100% 8,000,000 100%

There are no shares reserved for issue under optlons.

There are no shares allotted as fully pald up pursuant to contact(s) without payment being recelved In cash during the period of flve

years Immediately preceding the year ended March 31, 2017.

There are no shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the year ended March 31, 2017,

There are no securities that are convertlble into equity / preference shares.

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Securltles Premium Account
Balance as at the Beginning and End of the year

Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the Beginning of the year
Add : Profit for the year

Balance as at the End of the year

Total

e
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As at
March 31, 2017
Rupees

224,813,740

(290,612,393)

As at
March 31, 2016
Rupees

224,813,740

(295,756,549)

2,611,894 5,144,156
(2688,000,499) (290,612,393}
{63,186,759) {65,798,653)




IIJT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Proflt and Loss for the yaar
endad March 31, 2017

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at Ag at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupass
Unsecured
Loan from Holding Company# 8,130,293 12,760,574
Total 8,130,293 12,760,574

# The Loan taken frem the Holding Company !s Interest free loan and Is repayable on demand

TRADE PAYABLES As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Trade pavables (other than Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises) (Refer Note - 25) 277,000 341,048
Total 277.000 341,048
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES A at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupeas
Employees Benefits Payable 48,012 18,000
Statutory Dues * 46,068 72,068
Other Llabilities 680,710 489,734
Security Deposlit 2,100,000 2,100,000
Total &87&790 79, 2

* There are no amounts due and outstanding to be provided to the Investor Education and Protectlon Fund under section 205C of
Companles Act, 2013 as at the year end.

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupeas
Pravigion for Emploves Benelits
Leave Encashment (refer Note 19(a)) 33,396 33,396
Gratuity Payable (refer Note 19(a)) 40,477 -
Total 73,873 33,396
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ILJT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

ended March 31, 2017

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured considered goud (unless otherwise staled)

Qther lnans ang advances
CENVAT Credit Recelvable
Tax Deducted at Source *

Total

* Net of provisions for Tncome Tax Rs. NIL { Previous year Rs. NIL)

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Long Term Trade Hecaivables
Unsecured considered doubtful

Less : Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables

Total

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered aood

Outstanding for a perlod exceeding 6 months from the date they

are due for payment
Total

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(a) Cash And Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks

Current Actounts

(b) Other Bank Balances

Fixed Deposits Accounts (Maturlty more than 12 months but

within one year from the reporting date)

Total

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecurad considered good

Advances recoverabie In Cash or in kind or for value to be recelved

Provislon for doubtful advances
Prepaid Expenses
CENVAT Receivable

Total

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Bullding held for Sale (refer Note 27)

Balances with Governmeant Authorities (Refer Note 20(¢ ))

Total
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Mumba

As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupeaes
10,799 561,142
3,004,005 2,749,488
3,014,804 3,310,630
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
168,210 168,210
(168,210) (168,210)
As at As ot
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
20,235 20,235
20,235 20,235
As at Ag at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupess
374,721 3,779,754
100,000
374,721 3!879!?54
As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupaes
29,160 29,160
(29,160) (29,160)
5,149 5,351
676,200 588,000
681,349 593.351
= —=
As at As at
Merch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupesas Rupees
- 39,402
22,172,795 22,172,795
1,905,293 -
23078088 33,712,197
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IIJT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

March 31, 2017.

OTHER INCOME

Interest on Fixed Deposits

Provislon for Doubtful debts no longer required Written Back
Sundry Balances Written Back

Rental Income

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salarles and Allowances
Grawity (Refer Note 19(a))
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds (Refer Note 19 (b))

Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Rates and Taxes
Professional and Consultancy
Auditors' Remungration

Audit Fees

Out of Packet Expenses
Insurance
Bad Debts written off
Less: Related Provision for Doubtful Debts Written Back
Bank Charges
Office Expenses
Sundry Balances Written off

Total
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For the year ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

2,801

4,237,260

For the year endad
March 31, 2016
Rupees

43,400
2,696,652
19,592
4,200,000

4,240.06% 6,959,644

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
400,752 400,952
40,477
29,448 29,448
470,677 430,400

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year andad
March 31, 2016

Rupeeas Rupeaes
112,988 155,087
625,513 569,113
400,000 300,000

7,208 11,400

7.937 7.290

= 335,284

460 456

- 6,458
3,384 -

1 1,385.088
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I1JT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

March 31, 2017.

Earning per Bquity Share
For tha year anded For the yeasr ended

Particulars ) — 1 March 31,2017 | March 3%, 2016 |
Profit / (Loss) for the year (in Rupees) 2,611,894 5,144,156
Welighted average number of Equity Shares 8,000,000 8,000,000
Nominal Value of Shares ( in Rupees) 10 10

Eaming per Equity Share (NomlInal value per share Rs,10 each )
Basic and Diluted 0.33 0.64

a) Short Term Employee Benefits:

Unutilised leave balance that accrues to empioyees and Gratuity as at the year end Is charged to the Statement of ProRt and Loss on an
undiscounted basis. During the period ended March 31, 2017 and year ended March 31, 2016, there is no provision for leave encashment,
Gratuity expenses of Rs. 40,477/- have been provided durlng the year ended March 31, 2017.

b) During the yaar, the Company hag r gnised the following amounts In the Statemant of Profit and Loss:
For the year anded For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
R
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 20,208 20,208
Labaur Welfare Fund & PF Admin Charges 9,240 9,240
Total 29,448 | 29,448 |

Contingent Liabllity

3) Income tax matter in respect of Financlal Year 2010-11 for which an appeal has been (lled with Cammissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) on
Aprll 23, 2014 agalnst demand notice of Rs. 2,284,370 (Pravious year Rs. 2,284,370).

b) Income tax matter in respect of Financial year 2012-13 for which an appeal has been filed with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
against demand notice of Rs. 960,076( Previous year Rs, 960,076).

c) During the year, the Company has filed an appeal with Kalkata Municipal Tribunal against the demand notice ralsed by Kotkata Municipal
Corporatlon towards property tax of Rs. 3,416,100 by depaositing part of the amount under protest, This has been considered as contingent

liabllity.
Segment Raparting ¢

Primary Segments

The Business segment has been considered as the Primary Segment for disclosure, The Company Is In the business of imparting vocational
Training. Accordingly there are no reportable sagments as per AS 17 Issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla.

Geographical Segment

The Company operates in one Geographical segment namely " within Indla* and hence no separate Information for Geographical Segment
wise disclosure required.

Related Party Disclosure

(a) Relsted pactles where control exists:

Nature of Relatlonship Name of the Party
Holding Company TeamLease Services Limited
(b} Other Related Partles:

Key Management personne!
Ashok Kumar Nedurumalll - Director

Gopal Jain - Director
Shilpa Avarsakar - Director

Transactions carried out with related parties In the ordinary course of business

Nature of Transactions | Holding Company |
| March 2017 | March 2016 |
Transactions during the year = -
Advances Taken - TeamLease Services Limited 530,203 | -
Advances Repald - Teamioase Sarvices Limited 5,160,574 6,696,652
Other Expenses - Teamlense Services Uimited 314,800 240,000

[Amount outstanding as at Balance Shaet date

Amounts due to (Cr.)
ort Term Borrowings - @cured - [€amLease Services

Limited 8,130,293 12,760,574
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IIJT EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statemants forming part of Baianca Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Stateament of Profit and Loss for the year anded
March 31, 2017.

The net worth of the Company Is substantially eroded due to accumulated losses as at March 31, 2017, Taking into account the commitment made by the holding
company to infuse additional capital, If required, the Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on a “ Going Concern” hasls.

In view of the accumulated losses, no deferred tax asset has been consldered In books of account. Considering that such deferred tax asset has not been
recognised, the Company has also not recorded the timing differences in the nature of deferred tax liabilities that wouid be reversed and reduce such deferred

tax asset in future,

DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
There are no dues ta Micro and Small enterprises as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The above
Information regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been tdentifled on the basls of information avaltable with

the Company.

The Company did not have any Specified Bank Notes / Other denomination notes durlng November 08, 2016 to December 30,2016. Hence disclosure
for the same is not applicable.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, Bullding had been classified as held for sale under 'Other Current Assets’, considering intent of the Company
to dispose off the bullding. This classiflcation continues 3as en March 31, 2017 as the intention of the management to sell the bullding and
discussions are at advence stage.

Prior year amounts have been reclassifled, wherever necessary, to conform with current period's dassification.

The attached notes 1 to 28 to the financlal statements form an integral part of the Ananclal statements.

For Price Watsrhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of tha Board of Directors
Firm Registration Ma. - 012754N/N500016
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\
Arvind Daga Ashok Kumar Nedurumalll
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 108290 DIN : 00151814 DIN: DEOGS597
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- w Lo

Vish han Venkata

Company Secretary

CSN: 7078
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore

Date:NAT|?’u]} oate:rmr(},u.n—



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited,

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Keystone Business Solutions Private
Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these tinancial statements based on our audit.We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating t e 2

presentation of the financial statements. Q&\\
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(@) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2017;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Company for the period ended on
that date and

(c) Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure ‘A’ - statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

c) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement, dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31
March, 2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure B’; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of Companies (Audit and auditors), 2014,in our opinion and according to
theinformation and explanations given to us, to the best of our knowledge :

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts, for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. The company has provided requisite disclosures in its Financial Statements as to its
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th November,
2016 to 30th December, 2016 and these are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the company.

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 002395S

<
CHARTERED
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L R Narayanan

Place: Bangalore Partner
Date: 17" May, 2017 Membership No: 200/25588



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the
Auditors’ Report to the members of Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited on the accounts for the
period ended 31* March 2017.

According to the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There are no Immovable Properties held in the name of the company.

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provision of clause 3(ii} is not
applicable, as the Company has no inventory.

iii.  The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not
have any loans, investments, guarantees and securities covered under the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

v.  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits as per the directive issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly paragraph (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the Companies Act, for the
products/ services of the company.

vii.  (a) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax,
sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities except for a few delays in respect of remittances of the same.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, sales-tax,
customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable except with
respect to interest on service tax amounting to Rs. 1,46,309/-.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.




(d) There are no amounts that were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956(1 of
1956) and rules made there under.

viii. Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not availed loan from banks, financial institutions and government, and has no debentures.
Accordingly, paragraph (viii) is not applicable.

ix.  Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed monies nor have any outstanding dues to a financial institution or bank at any point of
time during the year.

Xx.  Based on our Audit and according to the information and explanations given to us and as represented
by the management, no fraud on or by the Company or by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 197 of the Act,
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company.

Xiii. Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us and as represented
by the management, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the companies Act 2013, and the same have been disclosed in the in the notes forming part
of financial statements under-2.5 as required by applicable Accounting standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly Para (xiv) is not
applicable.

xv.  Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any Non-Cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

XVi. Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0023955

(AN

Place: Bangalore L. Rl Narayanan .

Date: 17" May, 2017 Partner
Membership No.200/25588




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Keystone Business Solutions
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002395S
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Place: Bangalore L. Rl Narayanan
Date: 17" May, 2017 Partner
Membership No. 200/25588



KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2017
Not

Particulars I:oe As at 31-03-2017 | As at 31-03-2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 3 4,26,270 4,26,270
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 199,11,563 41,89,306
(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long Term Borrowings 5 - 29,13,565
(b) Long term Provisions 6 18,17,551 4,74,000
(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Trade Payables 7 1,52,295 1,93,820
(b) Other Current Liabilities 8 46,42,887 45,94,587
(c) Short term Provisions 9 89,35,087 11,35,112
TOTAL 358,85,653 139,26,660
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a.Fixed Assets
(i)Tangible Assets 10 7,305 3,82,210
(ii)intangible Assets 40,488 28,197
b.Non-Current Investments 11 - 99,990
c.Deferred Tax Assets 12 4,70,555 2,01,057
d.Long Term Loans and Advances 13 46,33,792 5,00,000
CURRENT ASSETS
A. Trade receivables 14 127,76,715 56,43,148
b. Cash/bank and Cash equivalents 15 104,61,659 27,66,557
c. Short Term Advances and Loans 16 71,26,123 42,99,820
d. Other Current Assets 17 3,69,017 5,682
TOTAL 358,85,653 139,26,660
Significant accounting policies and additional notes 182
forming integral part of the Financial Statements
For and behalf of "As per our report of even date "
Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited Narayanan Patil and Ramesh

Chartered Accountants
¢ Firm Regn. No. : 002395S
‘ W
N Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli L R Naraygnan -
Director Director Partner
DIN: 07332234 : 00151814 Membership No: 200/25588
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date: May 17,2017 = Date: May 17,2017
"y




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note no. 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Rs. Rs.
Revenue from Operations
| Income from Services 18 788,72,367 264,77,658
I Other Income 19 2,18,306 2,79,730
[} Total Revenue (I + Il) 790,90,673 267,57,388
v Expenses:
Employee expenses 20 474,25,380 187,56,100
Finance Cost 21 18,735 40,010
Depreciation and amortization expenses 10 1,56,021 2,71,096
Other Expenses 22 79,04,269 36,44,532
Total expenses 555,04,406 227,111,737
\ Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (lIl - IV} 235,86,267 40,45,651
\Y Exceptional Items - a
Vil Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 235,86,267 40,45,651
Vill Extraordinary ltems -
1X Profit/(Loss) before tax {VII - VIII) 235,86,267 40,45,651
X Tax Expenses
Current tax (81,33,509) (7,91,968)
Minimum alternate tax - credit - (37,350)
Deferred tax 2,69,498 24,084
Xl Profit/(Loss) for the year (IX - X} 157,22,256 32,40,417
X Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.10 each
Basic 368.83 76.02
Diluted 368.83 76.02
Significant accounting policies and additional notes forming integral part of the 182
Financial Statements
For and behalf of "As per our report of even date "
Keystope Business Solutions Private Limited Narayanan Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 002395S
QWL
N Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli . L R/Narayaran —
Director Director Pajtner
DIN: 07332234 DIN: 00151814 Membership No: 200/25588
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date: May 17, 2017 Date: May 17,2017




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 2017
{All amounts in INR. unless otherwise stated}

Sl.No. Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31,
31, 2017 2016

(i) Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 235,86,267 40,45,650
Adjustments for Non Cash & Non Operating items:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,56,021 2,71,096
Interest expenses 18,735 40,010
Profit on sale of Investments -1,79,982 -
Profit on sale of Assets -32,051
Operating profit before working capital changes 235,48,991 43,56,756
Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term borrowings -29,13,565 6,93,296
Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term provisions 5,14,233 1,06,209
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables -41,525 54,972
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 48,301 -6,25,982
Increase / (Decrease) in Short-term provisions 4,95,783 1,58,070
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans and Advances -41,33,792 -
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables -71,33,567 -30,81,679
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term loans and advances - 17,12,122
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets -3,63,335 1,72,728
Cash generated from operations 100,21,525 35,46,491
Income taxes paid -28,26,303 -23,10,814
Net cash from operating activities 71,95,221 12,35,677

(i) Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible/ intangible assets -1,86,348 -29,000
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 2,79,972 -
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 4,24,992 -
Net cash used in investing activities 5,18,616 -29,000

(iii) Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid -18,735 -40,010
Net cash used in financing activities -18,735 -40,010
Net Increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 76,95,102 11,66,667
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning the year 27,66,557 15,99,890
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 104,61,659 27,66,558
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance in bank 104,60,403 27,64,797
Cash in Hand 1,256 1,761
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 104,61,659 27,66,558

KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

For Narayanan Patil & Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0023955

1 M»W/

L it Naraygnan N Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Pirtner Director Director

embership No: 200/25588 DIN: 07332234 DIN: 00151814
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore

Date: May 17, 2017 Date: May 17, 2017




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.
Significant Accounting Policies and Additional Notes forming part of financial statements

1 Statement of Significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these
financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014. The Accounting policies adopted during the year, in preparation of these
financial statements are consistent with that of the previous year.

1.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as
of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

1.3 Fixed assets and capital work-in-progress

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost represents
purchase price and includes other costs incurred in bringing the fixed assets to its present
location and condition. Intangible assets will be recorded at the consideration paid for
acquisition.

1.4 Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Written down Value as per the useful life of the
asset as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Pro rata depreciation is provided
on all fixed assets purchased/ sold during the year. Depreciation on the additions has been
computed from the date the asset is put to use. The following has been adopted as the life of
assets as provided under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013:

Sk. no Asset Estimated Useful Life
1. Computers 3 years
2. Office Equipment 5 years
3. Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
4. Motor Vehicles 8 years
5. Software(Other than HRIS) 3 years
6. Software (HRIS) 5 years

Note: 5% of the total cost of the asset has been considered as scrap value for the purpose of
computation of depreciation.
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Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

1.5 Retirement benefits:

e  The Company’s gratuity scheme (the “Gratuity Plan”) is a defined benefit plan covering
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and
the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
projected unit credit method) at the end of year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

e  The employees of the Company are entitled to be compensated for unavailed leave as per
the policy of the Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial
valuation (using the projected unit credit method) at the end of year. Accumulated
compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits and those
expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year end are
treated as other long term employee benefits. The company’s liability is actuarially
determined (using Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year. Actuarial gains/
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

e  Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund will be provided for and payments
in respect thereof are made to the relevant authorities on actual basis for all eligible

employees. The company will have no further obligations under this plan beyond its
monthly contributions.

1.6 Revenue recognition

e  Revenues from Software and ITES (Information Technology Enabled Services) are recognized
on delivery of services, based on the terms of the contract entered into by the Company
with the clients.

e Revenue from Dividend Income is recognhized when the right to receive dividend is
established.

e  Revenue from Interest Income is recognized time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

¢  Unbilled revenue represents amount for which services have been rendered in accordance
with the terms of the agreement and not invoiced as at the balance sheet date.

1.7 Expenditure
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.

1.8 Foreign exchange transactions

e  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange

Lo

=~




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

transactions settled during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account for the
year.

e  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange
differences are recognised in the profit and loss account.

e  Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denomination in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

e  The Company does not enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to limit the effect of
exchange rate changes on its foreign currency receivables.

1.9 Taxation

e Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the year determined in
accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year).

e  Corporate Tax is charged on the taxable income at the rates prescribed by the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

e Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing difference between
accounting income and taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or credit and
the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that
have been substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset can be realized in
the future.

1.10 Earnings/ (loss) per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share comprise of the net
profit after tax. The number of shares used in computing the basic earnings per share is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The number of shares used in
computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average share considered for
deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of shares, if any which
would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

1.11 Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than the carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.
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Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

Recoverable amount is determined:

a) Inthe case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and value in use.

b) In the case of cash generating units, at the higher of the unit’s net selling price and the value in
use.

Value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

1.12 Provisions and contingencies

e  The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past (or
obligating) event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made
when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

o Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

1.13 Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.14 Events occurring after the date of Balance Sheet

Material events occurring after date of Balance Sheet are taken into cognizance.
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Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

2 Additional Notes forming integral part of accounts.

2.1 Auditors’ remuneration:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016
Statutory audit fees (including tax audit and related services) 1,50,000 90,000
Total 1,50,000 90,000

2.2 Contingent Liabilities not provided for: NIL

2.3 Deferred Taxation:

During the current year, the company has recognized the effect of deferred tax asset on account
of timing differences under Companies Act and Income Tax Act. The deferred tax asset included
in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Depreciation (64,576) (1,58,608)
Disallowance U/s 40(a)(ia) of IT Act, 1961 (16,862) (9,630)
Disallowance U/s 43B of IT Act, 1961 (3,89,117) (32,819)
Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (4,70,555) (2,01,057)

2.4 Quantitative details:

The Company is engaged in the business of ITES (Information Technology Enabled Services)
/manpower recruitment. Such services are not capable of being expressed in any generic unit
and hence, it is not possible to give the quantitative details required.

2.5 Related Party Disclosures:
Holding Company: TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited (w.e.f. February 01, 2017)
Uitimate Holding Company: TeamLease Services Limited (w.e.f. February 01, 2017)

As required under Accounting Standard 18, the following are the details of transaction during
the year with the related parties of the company as defined in AS 18:

Party Relationship Remuneration
Mr. Srinivasa Govinda Rao Director* Rs.9,80,742/-
Mr. Ashwin Krishna Director* Rs. 11,67,198/-
Mr. Raghavendra Pai Director* Rs. 4,00,859/-

:&e_g.igned w.e.f. February 01, 2017,
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Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

Party Relationship Reimbursement - of
expenses
TeamlLease Staffing Services | Holding Company Rs. 2,05,020/-
Private Limited
2.6 Transaction during the year with parties where control does not exist.
Particulars Loan from ~ Loan from Loan from
Director- Director- Director-
Srinivas Govinda | Ashwin Krishna | Ragavendra Pai
| Opening balances 2,77,100 19,03,586 4,82,614
Add: Amount Received 5,49,159 66,825 3,40,603
Less: Amount paid during the year 8,26,259 19,70,411 8,23,217
Closing balances - | = - -
2.7 Earnings Per Share
Particulars As at 31* March, 2017 As at 31° March, 2016.
Net profit for the year 1,57,22,256 32,40,417
Weighted Average Number of Shares 42,627 42,627
Basic Earnings per Share 368.83 76.02
Diluted Earnings per Share 368.83 76.02

2.8 Dues to medium and small enterprises
As per the information available with the company, the principal amount payable to Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises falling under the provisions of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, is Nil.

2.9 Earnings in Foreign Currency: Rs. 2,65,630/-

2.10 Expenditure in Foreign Currency: Nil

2.11 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis: Nil

2.12 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period November 08,

2016 to December 30, 2016
(Amount in Rs.)

Other
Particulars SBNs denomination Total
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 - 6,232 6,232
Permitted receipts - 42,000 42,000
Permitted payments - 43,176 43,176
Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 5,056 5,056




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited.

2.13 The shares of the company were transferred by the promoters to M/s TeamlLease Staffing
Services Private Limited during the year, on account of which, the company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of M/s TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited as at the date of the balance
sheet with its ultimate holding company being TeamLease Services Limited.

2.14 Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary as required.

For Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited For Narayanan, Patil & Ramesh

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No: 002395S
<

Oipronn ‘M/
N Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli L R Naraygnan
Director Director Pértner
DIN: 02888639 DIN: 00526581

Membership No: 200/25588

Place: Bangalore

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 17, 2017

Date: May 17, 2017




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

3 Share capital As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Authorized share capital
1,00,000 (Previous year: 1,00,000) equity shares of par value of Rs 10/- each
10,00,000 10,00,000
10,00,000 10,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
42,627 equity shares of par value of Rs 10/- each, fully paid up 4,26,270 4,26,270
4,26,270 4,26,270
(a) The. rec.onciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
capital is set out below:
Particulars
Number of shares at the beginning 42627 42627
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Number of shares at the end 42,627 42,627
{b) Disclosure of number of shares held As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited* (including its nominee) 426270 -
Mr. Ashwin Krishna = 1,60,960
Mr. Adarsh Holavanahalli 76,730
Mr Srinivas Govind Rao 1,05,180
Mr.Prasanna G - 24,400
Mr.Ragavendra Pai = 59,000
4,26,270 4,26,270
(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Particulars
TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited* (including its nominee) 42627 -
Mr. Ashwin Krishna - 16,096
Mr. Adarsh Holavanahalli 7,673
Mr. Srinivas Govind Rao 10,518
Mr.Prasanna G 2,440
Mr.Ragavendra Pai - 5,900
42,627 42,627
* Holding company w.e.f. February 01, 2017.
(d) TeamLease Services Limited is the ultimate holding company w.e.f. February 01, 2017.
4 Reserves and surplus As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Securities Premium
Opening balance 61,04,900 61,04,900
Add/(Less): Received on issue of shares - -
61,04,900 61,04,900
Surplus/Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance {19,15,593) (51,56,010)
Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss 157,22,256 32,40,417
138,06,663 (19,15,593)
Total 199,11,563 41,89,307
5 Long-term borrowings As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Term Loans from Bank:
Secured, considered good 2,50,265
(Secured against Hypothecation of car)
Loans and advances from Directors 26,63,300
Total - 29,13,565




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

6 Long term provisions As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Earned Leave* 1,38,442 90,902
Gratuity* 8,49,791 3,83,098
Provision for Income Tax for AY 16-17 8,29,318 8,29,318

Total 18,17,551 13,03,318

* As per actuarial valuation reports as of 31.03.2017.

7 Trade payables As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Due to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises = =
Others 1,52,295 1,93,820
Total 1,52,295 1,93,820
8 Other current liabilities As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Salary payable 37,67,954 21,35,568
Statutory liabilities 8,31,268 24,59,018
Other Payables 43,665 -
Total 46,42,887 45,94,586
9 Short term provisions As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Earned Leave* 13,376 -
Gratuity* 3,886 -
Provision for Expenses 7,84,316 3,05,795
Provision for Income Tax for AY 17-18 81,33,509 —
Total 89,35,087 3,05,795
* As per actuarial valuation reports as of 31.03.2017.
11 Non current Investments As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Keystone Healthcare Technologies Pvt Ltd
9999 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up = 99,990
Total - 99,990
13 Long term loans and advances As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Rental Deposit 3,33,972 5,00,000
TDS Receivables 42,99,820 2,16,034
Total 46,33,792 7,16,034
14 Trade receivables As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for’
payment
- Unsecured, considered good 2 =
Outstanding for a period less than 6 months from the date they are due for
payment.
- Unsecured, considered good 127,76,715 56,43,148
127,76,715 56,43,148
Less: Provision for short term trade receivables = -
Total 127,76,715 56,43,148
15 Cash and cash equivalents As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts 104,60,403 27,64,797
Cash on hand 1,256 1,761
Total 104,61,659 27,66,558
16 Short-term Loans and advances As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
TDS Receivables 71,26,123 42,99,820
Total 71,26,123 42,99,820
17 Other Current Assets As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2016
Prepaid Expenses 1,77,534 5,682
Receivable for sale of Assets 1,91,483 -
Total 3,69,017
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KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Note - 12 - Deferred Tax

Computation of Deferred Tax for the year 2016-17 (Upto 31.3.17)

. Companies .
Particulars Act Income tax Act Difference

WDV of fixed assets 47,793 2,43,104 1,95,311
Disallowed u/s 40 (a) (ia): - 51,000 51,000
Gratuity and Leave Encashment disallowed u/s 438 10,05,495 10,05,495
Bonus not paid during the year 1,71,402 1,71,402
Loss as per Income Tax c/f -

Total timing difference 47,793 14,71,001 14,23,208
Deffered Tax (Liability)/ Asset (@33.063%) 4,70,555
Deffered Tax Liability/(Asset) As on 31-03-2016 2,01,057
Effect to P&L 2,69,498
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KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the year ended

For the year ended

18 Income from Services
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Domestic Sales 786,06,737 260,31,938
Export Sales 2,65,630 4,45,719
Total 788,72,367 264,77,657
] For the year ended | For the year ended
19 Other income 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Other Income 2,18,306 2,79,730
Total 2,18,306 2,79,730
. For the year ended | For the year ended
20 Employee Benefit Expenses 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Salaries , Bonus & Allowances 454,31,255 179,20,264
Contribution to P.F, ESI, Payroll Penalty 17,79,517 6,17,675
Staff Welfare 2,14,608 2,18,161
Total 474,25,380 187,56,100
2 Finance Cost For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Interest on car loan 18,735 40,010
Total 18,735 40,010
10 Depreciation and Amortization For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Depreciation and Amortization 1,56,021 2,71,096
Total 1,56,021 2,71,096
29 Other Expenses For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Rent 7,87,709 9,69,320
Forex Loss 12,294 -
Power and Fuel 1,01,221 1,07,038
Travelling expenses 21,69,712 6,16,762
Professional Charges 31,89,958 6,70,440
Audit Fees 1,50,000 90,000
Office expenses 1,46,950 5,75,678
Rates & Taxes 1,81,062 1,68,057
Repairs & Maintenance Charges 87,701 85,583
Vehicle Maintenance & Insurance 28,382 52,648
Bad debts 67,295 -
Communication Expenses 1,35,006 1,30,682
Miscellaneous Expenses 62,001 27,332
Service Tax Input written off 7,33,975 -
Prior Period Expenses 51,004 1,50,993
Total 79,04,269 | / 36,44,532
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KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

a) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - GRATUITY (Unfunded)

The following tables summarize the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss and the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet for the Gratuity.

Disclosure relating to actuarial valuation of Gratuity:

I. Assumptions
Discount Rate
Expected Return On Plan Assets

Mortality

Future Salary Increases
Attrition
Retirement

1l. Change in Present Value Benefit Obligation:

Present Value Of obligation at the beginning of the year
Adjustment to present value

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Transfer In

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obligation

Present Value Of obligation at the end of the year

lll. Change in Fair Value Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan Assets beginning of the year
Expected Return On plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Actuarial gain/{loss) on Plan Assets

Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year

IV. Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized

V. Balance Sheet Recognition

Present Value Of Obligation

Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Liability (assets)

Unrecognised Past Service Cost

Liability (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

VI. Expenses Recognition

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return On plan assets

Net Actuarial {gain)/loss recognised in the year

Past Service Cost

Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

VII. Movements in the liability recognised in Balance Sheet
Opening net Liability

Adjustment to Present Value

Expenses

Benefits Paid

Transfer In

Closing Net Liability

VIIl. Current and Non-Current Liability
Current

Non-current

IX. Experience adjustment

Experience adjustment on Present value of obligation - Loss/{Gain)
Experience adjustment on fair value of Plan assets - Gain/(Loss)

Total experience adjustment

As at
March 31, 2017
7.50% p.a.
N.A,
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)
Ultimate
6% p.a
8% p.a.
58 yrs.

8,53,677

8,53,677

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

8,53,677
NA
8,53,677

8,53,677

8,53,677

NA

8,53,677

8,53,677

8,53,677

3,886
8,49,791

b) During the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

Particulars March 31 2017 | March 31 2016

Rupees Rupees
Employers contribution to Provident Fund 14,28,132 5,33,537
Employees State Insurance Corporation 1,87,060 21,315
Provident Fund Administrative charges 1,63,065 62,427
Total 17,78,257 6,17,279




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Sub-Schedules forming part of Balance Sheet

Sch. Ref . For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
No 31.1.2017 31.3.2016
Subschedule to Note No: 5
51 Loans and Advances from Directors
Ashwin Krishna 19,03,586.25
Raghavendra Pai - 4,82,614.15
Srinivasa Govinda Rao - 2,77,099.79
Total - 26,63,300.19
Subschedule to Note No: 7
71 Trade payable
Bennett Technologies Pvt Ltd 37,013 -
Sahana Tours and Travels 9,715
Ragesh M R 28,800 -
EHR Statute Point - 15,300
Ksheeraja Kannan 76,767 -
Jayathirthy - 71,820
Raghu - 50,000
Suman Nagshetty Patil 11,700
VipinUN - 45,000
Total 1,52,295 1,93,820
Subschedule to Note No: 8
8.1 Statutory liabilities
Service tax with SBC 2,01,630 20,66,333
Interest on Service tax payable 1,46,309 1,46,309
TDS Payable 1,39,435 86,867
PT Payable 18,400 7,200
PF Payable 2,83,488 1,47,393
ESI Payable 42,006 4,916
Total 8,31,268 24,59,018




Subschedule to Note No: 8

8.1.1 Service Tax Liability
Edu.Cess @ 2% 13,522.86
Sec.Edu.Cess @ 1% = 6,793.63
Service Tax @ 12% 8,72,183.00
Service Tax @ 14% (21,628) 13,51,603
Service Tax-Collected 1,59,327 1,59,327
Service Tax Control 81,486 81,486
Swacch Bharat Cess @ 0.5% (11,284) 47,392
Krishi Kalyan Cess @ 0.5% (5,230) 2
ST Payable on RCM basis 583
Input Service Tax - (4,07,947)
Input KKC 0.5% (1,623) -
Service Tax (75% Borne by SR) ~ (58,027)
Total 2,01,630 20,66,333
Subschedule to Note No: 8
8.1.2 TDS
Tds-Contract 3,600.00 1,800.00
Tds-Professional 18,130 16,830
Tds-Salary 1,17,705 68,237
Total 1,39,435 86,867
Subschedule to Note No: 8
8.2 Salary payable
Staff Salary Payable 37,67,954 =
Total 37,67,954
Subschedule to Note No: 8
8.3 Other payables
Mirage Designers & Printers 2,490 =
EHR Statute Point 41,175 -
Total ‘43,665
Subschedule to Note No: 9
9.1 Short Term Provisions
Audit fees Payable 1,50,000 90,000
Telephone Expenses Payable 4,005 1,799
Employee Expenses Payable 95,255
Expenses Payable - Provision for Rent, Payroll etc 4,37,338 1,18,741
Parking Payable
Staff Bonus Payable 1,92,973
Total 7,84,316 3,05,795




Subschedule to Note No: 13
13.10 | Rental Deposit
K N Seshadri 5,00,000
Md.Musa Sait Wakf 3,33,972 -
Total 3,33,972 5,00,000
Subschedule to Note No: 13
13.2 TDS Receivables
TDS-Cable & Wireless 18,200 18,200
TDS-GBM Qatar (Witholding Tax) 1,28,052 1,28,052
TDS-Infor Global 4,501 4,501
TDS-Infrasoft 8,312 8,312
TDS-Logica 20,406 20,406
TDS-Mercedez 40,83,785 -
TDS-Mportal 2,527 2,527
TDS-SLK Software 34,037 34,037
Total 42,99,820 2,16,034
Subschedule to Note No: 14
14.1 Trade Receivable:
Unsecured & Oultstanding For Less Than Six Months:
Mercedez Benz 106,56,386 54,91,614
Mercedez Benz (SEZ Unit) 15,07,857 -
Umbical Technologies Private Limited 3,59,135
TUV Rheinland L.L.C. 2,53,337 =
Zenith Talent Corporation = 1,51,534
Total 127,76,715 56,43,148
Subschedule to Note No: 15
15.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Balance in Hand 1,256 1,761
Balances with banks
Bank of India A/c - 849420110000328 - 5,23,878
HDFC Bank -1018 104,60,403 22,40,919
Sub total 104,60,403 27,64,797
Total 104,61,659 27,66,558
Subschedule to Note No: 16
16.1 TDS Receivables
TDS-Mercedez 63,48,721 40,83,785
TDS - Mercedez (SEZ) 7,64,374 -
TDS Receivable - Commvault 13,028 -
Total 71,26,123 40,83,785




KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Sub-Schedules forming part of Statement of Profit and Loss

Subschedule to Note No: 19

19.1 Other income
Miscellaneous Income 6,273 1,26,494
Profit on Sale of Investments 1,79,982 -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 32,051 -
KHT payable reversal . 1,53,236
Total 2,18,306 2,79,730
Subschedule to Note No: 20
20.1 Salaries , Bonus & Allowances
Salaries 406,02,308 149,46,459
Notice Pay 26,000
Incentive on performance 6,59,226 1,18,088
Employee referral bonus 40,000 25,000
Leave encashment 1,46,323 33,000
Staff Bonus 1,96,952 -
Directors Salary 28,16,632 27,08,717
Employee Hire Charges 1,37,466
Gratuity 8,06,348 89,000
Total 454,31,255 179,20,264
Subschedule to Note No: 20
20.2 Contribution to P.F, ESI, Payroll Penalty
Admin charges PF 1,63,065 62,427
Company contribution ESI 1,87,060 21,315
Company Contribution-LWF 1,260 396
Company contribution PF 14,28,132 5,33,537
Total 17,79,517 6,17,675
Subschedule to Note No: 20
20.3 Staff welfare
Staff Welfare Expenses 53,192 35,256
Food & refreshment Expenses 1,61,416 1,82,905
Total 2,14,608 2,18,161
Subschedule to Note No: 22
221 Rent others
Rent-Computers - 7695
Rent-Car Parking 21,000
Rent Office - Md.Musa Sait Wakf 3,29,280 -
Rent Office - Sarala Seshadri 3,56,535 -
Rent Office-KN Seshadri 80,894 9,61,625
Total 7,87,709 9,69,320
Subschedule to Note No: 22
22.2 Power and fuel
Electricity Expenses 63,121 -
Fuel Expenses 500 -
Fuel Reimbursement 37,600 1,07,038
Total 1,01,221 1,97,038




Subschedule to Note No: 22

22.3 Travelling expenses
Travelling Expenses 29,331 77,794
Boarding & lodging Expenses 6,822 10,744
Conveyance Allowances/Shift Reimbursement 21,33,559 5,28,224
Total 21,69,712 6,16,762
Subschedule to Note No: 22
22.4 Professional Charges
Professional Charges 19,56,000 1,20,500
Payroll Processing Charges 1,15,000 1,18,250
Consultancy Fees 11,18,958 5,49,940
Total 31,89,958 7,88,690
Subschedule to Note No: 22
225 Office expenses
Office Maintenace 26,305 4,890
Office expenses 29,382
Postage and courier 6,325 6,464
Printing and Stationery 63,709 34,368
Reimbursement of expenses/ out of pocket 5,118 12,000
Website Charges 10,183 3,37,629
Tally Service Charges 5,928 5,100
Credit Card charges = 56,977
Total 1,46,950
Subschedule to Note No: 22
22.6 Rates & Taxes
Interest-TDS 13,536 2,485
Professional tax annual fee & statutory expenses 51,275 23,006
SBC & Service tax paid on RCM basis 16,559 -
Registration,renewal & stamp charges 99,692 1,38,112
Interest on Service Tax 4,454
Total 1,81,062 1,68,057
Subschedule to Note No: 22
22.7 Communication expenses
Internet /3G Expenses 9,096 17,125
Telephone Expenses 24,931 22,562
Mobile expenses 54,858 47,073
Mobile Reimbursement 2,100 -
Broadband Charges 44,021 43,922
Total 1,35,006 1,30,682
Subschedule to Note No: 22
228 Miscellaneous Expenses
DG Hire charges 10550
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,465 5,450
Bank charges 9,087 9,341
Local Conveyance 2,000
Books & Periodicals 605 -
Network Solution Charges 3,830
Piperive Charges 8,855 =
Pooja Expenses 18,525
Survey Charges 3,750
Adpvertising Expenses 15,925 -
Rounding Off (42) 9
Total 62,001 27,3}2
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MANIAN & RAO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NICHEPRO
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31* March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the -Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, , read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based
on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

No.361, | Floor, 7th Cross,

| Block Jayanagar, Bangalore - 560 011.
Ph: +91 80 26569500

Telefax: +91 80 26569501

Email: contact@manian-rao.com




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2017, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3} of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
its Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us: L & B
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i) The Company has does not have any pending litigations as on 315 March
2017;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial
statements as regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as
defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated the 8th November, 2016 of
the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8th November 2016 to 30t
December 2016. Based on audit procedures performed and the
representations provided to us by the management we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the
Company and as produced to us by the Management.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001983S

Paresh Daga /Ay
Partner ([
M.No. 211468

Place : Bangalore

Date : 17*" May 2017



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NICHEPRO
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001983S

LY

Paresh Daga
Partner
M.No. 211468

Place : Bangalore

Date : 17t May 2017



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner over a period of 3 (three) years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the Order is
not applicable.

As explained to us, the company does not hold any inventories, accordingly reporting
under paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans nor made investments or given guarantees
and security during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, ,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2017
on account of disputes

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.



(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001983S

0

ParesiiDaga
Partner

M.No. 211468
Place: Bangalore

Date : 17t May 2017



Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

- Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Particulars Note | As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016
No.
A |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3 688,922,100 1497,36,800
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 (4,47,424) (742,48,523)
684,44,676 754,88,277
2|Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 51 - 26,43,292
(b) Long-term provisions 52 51,76,975 -
51,76,975 26,43,292
3|Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 6.1 1109,91,444 1030,92,802
(b) Trade payables 6.2 6,84,620 50,32,314
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities 6.3 109,84,367 515,41,555
(d) Short-term provisions 6.4 5,94,211 8,87,569
1232,54,642 1605,54,240
TOTAL 1968,76,293 2386,85,809
B |ASSETS
1|Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 7.1 10,82,165 40,15,892
(i) Intangible assets 7.2 55,487 32,34,644
(b) Deferred Tax Asset 8.1 605,34,907 30,69,043
(c) Other Non Current Assets 8.2 10,04,176 4,72 801
626,76,735 107,92,380
2(Current assets
(a) Trade receivables 9.1 234,52,766 849,54,081
(b) Cash and Bank Balances 9.2 179,57,450 813,00,373
(c) Short-term loans and advances 9.3 709,28,237 511,68,354
(d) Other current assets 9.4 218,61,105 104,70,621
1341,99,558 2278,93,429
TOTAL 1968,76,293 2386,85,809
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Manian & Rao
Firm Registration Number: 001983S

Chartered Accountants
..-"‘_._\_“H"'
i '-‘:,";4‘; )_,:
(,. Bangalo% 4
\CL o
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Paresh Da
Partner
Membership No: 211468

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ravi Vishwanath

Director

DIN: 07332234
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Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
s Director
e : "QIN: 00151814




Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016
Revenue
1 Revenue from operations (Gross) 2555,90,428 3068,12,670
Less: Service Tax 264,81,987 334,70,063
Revenue from operations (Net) 10 2291,08,441 2733,42,607
2 Other income 11 32,53,931 71,48,368
3 Total revenue (1+2) 2323,62,372 2804,90,975
4 Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 12 1777,24,406 2110,00,729
(b) Finance costs 13 140,37,430 295.52.517
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 20,37,827 270,35,793
(d) Other expenses 15 1280,47,173 1322,11,963
Total expenses 3218,46,836 3998,01,002_
5 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (894,84 ,465) (1193,10,027)
(3-4)
6 Exceptional items - -
7 Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (5 + 6) (894,84,465) (1193,10,027)
8 Extraordinary items - -
9 Profit / (Loss) before tax (7 + 8) (894,84,465) (1193,10,027)
10 |Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense for current year =
(b) Deferred tax (574,65,864) 2,51,201
(574,65,864) 2,51,201
11 |Profit / (Loss) for the year (9 + 10) (320,18,601) (1195,61,228)
12 |Basic/Dilued Earnings Per Equity Share (Face value of Rs.10 (8.06) (45.43)
each)
Significant Accounting Policies 2

For Manian & Rao
Firm Registration Number: 001983S
Chartered Accountants

Paresh Daga
Partner
Membership No: 211468

' [ Bangalore

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

AN

N. Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Director Director
DiN: 07332234 DIN: 00151814




NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2017

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

A. [Cash flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (894,84,465) (1193,10,027)
Add/(Less): Non-cash and Non-operating items
Depreciation / Amortisation on fixed assets 20,37,827 270,35,793
Provision for impairment of intangible assets - 614,10,410
Interest Expense and Bank Charges 140,37,430 295,562,517
Interest Income (10,13,623) (62,09,184)
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss on foreign currency = (9,39,184)
Liability no longer required written back (11,18,863) -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 64,10,315 -
Bad Debts written off/advances written off 28,33,861 -
Provision for Gratuity 29,78,186 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 21,11,868 -
Loss On Sale of Fixed Assets 12.08,299 -
Operating profit before working capital changes (599,99,165) (84,59,675)
Adjustments for Changes in Working capital
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (32,28,831) (49,30,485)
Increase/(Decrease) in other Current Liabilities (409,81,219) 186,90,666
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (2,06,437) (15,00,035)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 522,57,139 187,49,696
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (113,83,031) 53,54,511
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans & Advances {411,99,748) (447,42,127) 42 63,718 406,28,072
Operating profit after working capital changes (1047,41,292) 321,68,397
Income Tax Paid (Net of refunds) 214,32.411 (253,69,398)

| __|Net Cash Generated From / (Used in) Operating Activities (A) (833,08,880) 67,98,999

B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (12,03,289) (33,000)
Sale/(Purchase) Of Investments in fixed deposits 671,47,342 (721,12,734)
Sale Of Fixed Assets 40,70,047 -
Interest Income 10,13,623 62,09,184
Net Cash Generated From/ (Used in) Investing Activities (B) 710,27,723 (659,36,550)

C. |Cash flow from Financing Activities
Interest Paid (140,37,430) (295,52,517)
Proceeds /(Repayment) from/(of) borrowings (Net) 56,79,381 (399,84,394)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares during the year 249,75,000 -
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) - (9,25,105)
Net Cash Generated From / (Used in) Financing Activities (C) 166,16,951 (704,62,016)
Net (Decrease)/increase In Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 43,35,794 {1295,99,567)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 4,22,804 1300,22,371
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the vear 1 _47.58.598 4,22,804
Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 2,556 6,911
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 47,56,042 4,15,893
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 47,58,598 4,22,804

Notes

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on "Cash Flow

Statements".

2 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year classification
3 Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo / income

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

QA ghod

N. Ravi Vishwanath Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli

For Manian & Rao
Firm Registration Number: 0019838
Chartered Accountants

Paresh Daga
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 211468

DIN: 07332234 DIN: 00151814

Place : Bangalore
Date : May 17, 2017




NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2017

1. General Information

Nichepro Technologies Private Limited (“the Company“) was incorporated on June 25, 2008. The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of information technology and consulting and product development and other allied activities .
The entire shares of the Company was fully acquired by TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited w.e.f October 01, 2016.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 till the Standards of Accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central
Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have
been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule [il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities.

iil. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements and the
reported income and expenses during the reported period. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized
in the period in which results are known or materialized.

iii. Tangible Assets:
Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Items of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book
value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, losses arising from retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which
are carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual value is generally assumed as five percent of the original cost of the asset. The
company has evaluated the useful lives for the following assets to be lower than as prescribed under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013:

Furniture & Fixture : 3 years
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NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2017

iv. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. A rebuttable presumption that the
useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use is considered by
the management. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end and
if the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed
accordingly.

Internal development of intangible assets are capitalised either individually or as a knowledge bank in the form of software,
once their technical feasibility and ability to generate future economic benefits is established in accordance with the
requirement of Accounting Standard 26. Expenditure directly attributable to the development of an Intangible asset in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 26 are capitalized.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The amortization rates used are:

V. Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings to the extent

they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

vi. Impairment of Assets:
Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible or intangible) may

be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a
cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is
made.

Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its
useful life. Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

vii.  Foreign Currency Translation:

Initial Recognition :-

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition :-
As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or
other similar valuation denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values
were determined.

All monetary assets and Iiabilit[ggiﬁj:érei n currency are restated at the end of accounting period.
Exchange differences on rest t’é;ﬁ)bﬁ'é all*dther monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2017

viii. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from Manpower services is accounted on accrual basis on performance of the service agreed in the Contract /
Mandate Letter between the Company and its customer.

Revenue from providing technical personnel for providing various IT enabled services are recognized on time basis i.e.
no of man days /no of man hours working for the assignment/client.

In respect of Business Process Services, revenue on time and material and unit priced contracts is recognized as the
related services are rendered, whereas revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the proportionate completion
method with contract cost determining the degree of completion.

Other Income:

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

the rate applicable.
Net Revenue excludes Service Tax and other statutory levies.

ix. Employee Benefits:

a) Provident Fund

Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no
further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Contribution as required by the Statute made to the Government Provident Fund is debited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company has a defined contribution plan for post employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund. Under the
Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government administered provident fund on behalf of the employees.
The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. Contributions to Provident Fund are made in
accordance with the statute, and are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

b) Gratuity
The Company’s gratuity scheme (the “Gratuity Plan”) is a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees in accordance with

the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure
of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the end of each

vear.
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

c¢) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to be compensated for unavailed leave as per the policy of the Company, the
liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial valuation {using the projected unit credit method} at the end of
each year. Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the
end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits and those expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12
months from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The company’s liability is actuarially
determined (using Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year. Actuarial gains/ losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Termination Benefits paid: Termination benefits in the nature of voluntary retirement are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when incurred.
QN




NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2017

X. Current and Deferred Tax:

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss
for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax
assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and
where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation

laws.
Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the

Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

xi. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its nresent value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Xii. Leases:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the terms
of the agreement and the effect of lease equalisation is not given considering the increment is on account of inflation factor.

xiii. Segment Reporting

The Company operates only in one segment, hence segmental reporting is not applicable.

xiv.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

xv.  Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity sh tstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the
Company’s earnings per share is the net p Qfltffé‘} theheriod after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax
thereto for the period. The weighted a '[‘a e nu b 1? equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such\'s RS /r&s, ther than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have

changed the number of equity shares tandlng out a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose. of

calculating diluted earnings per share, thé‘ net prqﬂ orJoss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and weighted
average number of shares outstanding durmg the perfod is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive pgtential equity 5har

i




Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,

2017
Note 3 Share capital

The Authorised, issued, subscribed and Fully paid-up share capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each.

As at 31 March, 2017

As at 31 March, 2016

Number of Number of
shares shares
3 Share Capital
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with voting rights 149,73,680 1497,36,800 26,31,580 263,15,800
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of Rs 100 each - - 12.34.210 1234,21,000
149,73,680 1497,36,800 38,65.790 1497,36,800
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with voting rights 68,89,210 688,92,100 26,31,580 263,15,800
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of Rs 100 each = 1 1234210 1234,21,000
68,89,210 688,92,100 38,65,790 1497,36,800
a. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding As at 31 March, 2017 1 As at 31st March 2016 |
Number of Number of
Equity shares shares shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the Year 26,31,580 263,15,800 26,31,580 263,15,800
Equity shares issued on conversion of OCCPS (Refer Note 1.f below) 37,02,630 370,26,300 3 -
Equity shares issued during the year (Refer Note 1.g below) 5,565,000 55,50,000 - -
Number of equity shares at the end of the Year 68,89,210 688,92,100 26,31,580 263,15,800
Number of Number of
Optionally convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs 100 each shares shares
Number of Preference shares at the beginning of the Year 12,34,210 1234,21,000 12,34,210 1234,21,000
Preference shares converted into equity during the year (12,34,210)|  (1234,21,000) = -
- - 12,34,210 1234,21,000

b. Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs10 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the companyafter distribution of all preferential

amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Preference shares

Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference shares(OCCPS) carried a fixed cumulative dividend of 12% per annum and eligible for higher rate in the event
the dividend declared on ordinary equity shares exceeds 12%. If dividend is not paid in any partcular year, the dividend shall accumalate and in the year in
which dividends are declared by the company, all unpaid dividends will be first paid to OCCPS holders before disbursement of dividends to other share

holders. During the year, all the OCCPS were converted into equity.

C. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity Shares
Name of shareholder As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016
Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
shares held that class of shares held that class of
Sl No shares shares
1| TeamLease Staffina Services Private Limited (including its nominee) 68,89,210 100% ~ =
2|N. Satisha - 1875000 71.25
3|Arundathi Satisha - = 625000 23.75
4|Canbank Venture Capital Fund Limited - - 131580 5.00
Optionally convertible cumulative preference shares
Name of shareholder As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016
Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
shares held that class of shares held that class of
SI No. .___ shares shares
1 Canbank Venture Capital Fund Limited 12,34,210 100.00

N Ravi Vishwanath as a nominee of TSSPL

d. TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited(TSSPL) is the holding company holding 100% of }_&?mre capital,

BHUW

e. TeamLease Services Limited(TSL) is the uitimate holding company of the Company

/\'J\I
7

Shares of Rs. 10 each. The Company has recognised share premium to the extent of Rs. 8,63,94,700/- on such conversion

g. On 15th December 2016, the Company has alloted on rights basis 5,55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to TeamLease St
price of Rs 45 per share (including premium of Rs. 35 per share) resulting into share premium of Rs. 1,94,25,500 on such issue.

Company. One equity share is held by Mr.



Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 4 Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2017 2016
(a) Securities premium account
Opening balance 52,63,200 52,63,200
Add : Premium on shares issued during the year 1058,19,700 &
Closing balance 1110,82,900 52,63,200
(b) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
(795,11,723) 400,49,505

Opening balance
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year
Closing balance

Total

(320,18,601)

(1195,61,228)

(1115,30,324)

(795,11,723)

(4,47,424)

(742,48,523)

Note 5 Non-Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2017 2016
5.1 Long-term borrowings
Secured

Vehicle loan (secured against hypothecation of vehicle) - 17,11,806
Unsecured loans from Others 9,31,486
- 26,43,292

5.2. Long-term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits:

Provision for Gratuity 28,05,158 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 23,71,817 -
51,76,975 -




Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 6 Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2017

As at 31 March, 2016

6.1.Short Term Borrowings
Secured Loan

Canara Bank OD Ac* 109,91,444 559,72,617
Canara Bank Factor Account# - 471,20,185
Unsecured Loan
From TeamlLease Staffing Services Private Limited, Holding Company 1000,00,000 -
Total 1109,91,444 1030,92,802
* Against hypothecation of book debts,lien of fixed deposits,collateral
securities of directors and personal guarantee from the Directors
#Prime Security- Assignment of Factored receivables and personal
guarantee of the directors then.
6.2. Trade Payables
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - .
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 6.84,620 50,32,314
Total 6,84,620 50,32,314
6.3. Other Current Liabilities
Current maturities of Long-term borrowings - 16,74,823
interest due on unsecured loan 20,98,854 -
Advance received from Customers 20,44,299 8,05,825
Others:
TDS and Interest thereon 14,32,303 221,563,234
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 12,63,853 13,75,890
Employee Benefits Payable 21,02,493 8,00,996
Service tax payable(including interest thereon) 12,98,051 190,41,583
Other Liabilities (including PF, PT, ESIC and KVAT) 7,44,515 13,76,866
Bank Current A/c ( Temporary Overdrawn) - 43,12,339
Total 109,84,367 515,41,555
6.4. Short-term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits:
Provision for Gratuity 13,865 2,62,274
Provision for Leave Encashment 2,05,346 4,65,295
Audit Fees Payable 3,75,000 1,60,000
Total 5,94,211 8,87,569
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Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 8 Non Current Assetls

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016

8.1 Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Asset:

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 21,19,442 -
Difference between Book and Tax Depreciation 179,19,670 30,69,043
Unabsorbed depreciation losses@ 234,36,017 -
Unabsorbed business losses@ 152,75,637 -
Provision for employee benefits
--Gratuity 9,32,054 -
--Leave Encashment 8.52,087 =
Total 605,34,907 30,69,043

@ As at the reporfing date, the enterprise is virtually certain that sufficient fulure taxable income will be available against
which the deferred tax asset will be realised. The business performance has improved post 01.10.2016 i.e. date of change in
management and control. The Company has entered into perpetual contracts with most of the clients which have resulted in
profits during the period from 01.10.2016 to 31.03.2017. The Company expects the performance to be better in the caming

years and will be able to realise the deferred tax assets

Particulars As at 31 March, 2017 | As at 31 March, 2016
8.2 Other Non Current Assets
Fixed Deposit - Canara Bank(including interest accrued thereon)* 10,04,176 4,72,801
Total 10,04,176 4,72,801
* The above fixed deposits are given as lien against obtaining bank guarantee facilities taken by the company.
Particulars | As at 31 March, 2017 | As at 31 March, 2016
Note 9 Current Assets
9.1. Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Exceeding six months from the date they are due from payment
Considered Good* - 435,61,200
Considered Doubtful 64,10,315 -
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (64.10,315) -
- 435,61,200
Others
Considered Good 234,52,766 413,92,881
Total 234,52,766 849,54,081
* includes due from related parties - Rs. NIL (P.Y. Rs 3,71,96,630)
9.2. Cash and Bank balances
(a) Cash And Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:
In Current accounts 47,56,042 4,15,893
Cash on Hand 2,556 6,911
47,58,598 4,22,804
(b) Other Bank Balances
In Fixed Deposit Accounts
(maturity within 12 months from the date of acquisition)# 131,98,852 808,77,569
Total 179,57,450 813,00,373
9.3. Short Term Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Advances
Considered Good 8,20,641 18,13,329
Tax Deducted at Source 693,10,905 478,78,493
Taxes and Duties paid in advance - 3,00,532
Prepaid Expenses 7,96,691 11,76,000
Total 709,28,237 511,68,354
9.4 Other Current Assets
Rental deposit - 58,65,000
Unbilled Revenue 218,53,652 -
Other Advances 7,453 -
Telephone Deposit o) - 2,54,433
Advances to entities in whigh’ imhref'lr}teflf ted - 43,51,188
2} /& f
NN/ Total 218,61,105 104,70,620

# The above fixed deposits are.gilen asdien-atiainst working capital facilities taken by the company.
Sa ',‘_/D’
——

alt

ey
—




NICHEPRO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit

and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 10 Revenue from operations (Net)

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March. 2017 March, 2016
(@) Sale of products 56,89,673 24,13,505
(b) Income from services 2234,18,768 2709,29,102
Total 2291,08,441 2733,42,607

Note 11 Other income

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
March, 2017 March, 2016
(a) Interest income 10,13,623 62,09,184
(b) Gain on account of foreign currency fluctuations 9,71,444 9,39,184
(c) Liability no longer required written back 11,18,863 -
(d) Miscellaneous Income 1.50,000 -
Total 32,53,931 71,48,368

s



Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 12 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

For the year ended
31 March, 2016

Salaries and wages 1631,18,588 1950,36,495
Director's Remuneration 40,80,000 81,60,000
Contributions to provident and other funds 48,57,389 69,31,552
Gratuity® 29,78,186 -
Leave Encashment* 21,11,868 -
Staff welfare expenses 5,78,375 8,72,682
Total 1777,24,406 2110,00,729

M Includes prior period expenses of Rs. 26,56,579 as per actuary report and the gratuity paid to employees exited during the

year not considered in the valuation report as of 31.03.2017.

* Leave Encashment liability is provided as per the Actuarial valuation report obtained for the year Ended March 31, 2017.

Gratuity

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to Fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line
with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is paid at the time of separation from the Company or retirement,
whichever is earlier. The benefits vest in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Leave Encashment

Every employee is entitled to a leave encashment of 15 days of Paid Leave (Maximum carry forward of 30 days) calculated
on gross pay. The same is paid at the time of separation from the Company or Retirement whichever is earlier.

Note 13 Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

For the year ended
31 March, 2016

Bank Charges 6,85,751 1,64,595
Interest paid 133,51,680 293,87,922
Total 140,37,430 295,52,517

Note 14 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

Depreciation 10,16,183 1,64,595
Amortisation 10,21,644 293,87,922
Total 20,37,827 295,52,517

N
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Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 15 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March, 2017

For the year ended
31 March, 2016

Particulars

Audtiors' Remuneration:

Audit Fees 3,25,000 1,00,000

Review Fees 1,00,000

Tax Audit Fees 50,000 50,000
Books & periodicals 1,960 4,200
Business Promotion 29,140 2,46,261
Project and hardware expenses 71,65,625 89,64,203
Commission Paid 33,185 57,151
Computer Maintainance 2,16,166 3,39,344
Electricity Charges 4,33,471 7,91,262
Insurance Premium 12,72,703 17,52,149
Internet Charges 89,550 17,79,464
Loss on sale of fixed assets 12,08,299 =
Miscellaneous Expenses 29,004 41,282
Office Maintainance 5,95,928 13,62,113
Operating Lease Charges 7,20,763 27,51,694
Postage and couriers 88,245 1,24,011
EMD and E procurement expenses 1,43,400
Printing and Stationery 82,190 1,15,686
Professional Fees 770,77,925 39,85,278
Professional Fees-Direct 45,15,115 61,10,766
Rates & Taxes 93,94,742 1,14,952
Registration and Renewals 15,670
Directors Remuneration 20,000 81,60,000
Recruiting Expenses 3,200 34,188
Rent 66,28,411 93,41,570
Security Charges 3,32,744 6,58,430
Rebate and discounts 20,75,925 24,744
Software Licences 23,90,354 28,07,989
Telephone Charges 10,18,906 21,96,467
Training and Development - 26,750
Bad Debts written off/advances writte cﬂf:r[ 28,33,861 95,38,617
Travelling and conveyance T - 27,37,322 87,76,645
Vehicle Maintainance 60,627 85,670
Water Charges 1,06,498 1,46,220
Labour Contract Charges : 1,565,377
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 64,10,315 -
Provision for impairment of intangible assets - 614,10,410

Total 1280,47,173 1322,11,963




Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended March 31, 2017

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Contingent Liability
There are no contingent liabilities as on 31.03.2017 (Previous Year Rs. NIL).

{b) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital advance of Rs NIL) as at
March 31, 2017 is Rs NIL and (Previous Year Rs. NIL)

(c) Other Commitments

Guarantees given by banks against Fixed Deposits as at March 31, 2017 is Rs. 9,40,000 (Previous year Rs. 4,70,000) in favour of BWSS

LEASES
(a) The Company has taken on operating lease office premises at various locations and rents are accounted as per the agreement.

(b) Rent payments are recognised in the Statements of Profit and Loss under the head "Rent" in Notes 11 "Other Expenses" for the year
ended March 31, 2017 amounting to Rs. 66,28,411 (Previous year: Rs 93,41,570).

(c ) The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below.

Minimum Lease Rental Payable As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Within 1 year Nil Nil
Later than one year but not later than 5 years Nil Nil
More than 5 years Nil Nil

DUES TO MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

There are no dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. The above information regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
{a) Related parties where control exists:
Nature of Relationship

Ultimate Holding Company TeamlLease Services Limited ('TLSL'")
*Ultimate Holding company w.e.f October 01, 2016.

Holding Company TeamlLease Staffing Services Private Limited (TSSPL')
*Holding company w.e.f October 01, 2016.

(b) Other Related Parties:

Rl

Key Management personnel Mr. Satisha Naraharimurthy - Director (Resigned w.e.f October 01, 2016) N
Ms. Arundathi G V - Director (Resigned w.e.f October 01, 2016) )

Directors* Mr. Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli, Non-executive director
Mr. Narayan Swamy Ravi Vishwanath, Non-executive director
Ms. Shilpa Kamlesh Avarsekar, Independent director
Mr. Sudhir Bahadur Bajpai, Independent director

* Appointed w.e.f October 01, 2016

Enterprise over which Key Management Smartrplanet Services India Private Limited('Smartrplanet')#

_P(fa]rsonnel E"t': a:le t(: exermf.e S|g:|ﬁca:“k Comcast Software Solutions Private Limited('Comcast")#

influence with whom transactions have taken . e Lo .

place during the year NetZealous Services India Private Limited('NetZealous')#
NetZealous LLC., USA('NetZealous USA")#

Al

i

# Upto September 30, 2016.
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Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the

year ended March 31, 2017

a) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - GRATUITY (Funded)

The following tables summarize the components of the nel employee benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet for the Graluity. The liabilily is funded with L.1.C

Disclosure relating {o actuarial valuation of Gratuity:

I. Assumptions
Discount Rate
Expected Return On Plan Assels

Mortality

Future Salary Increases
Attrition
Retirement

Il. Change in Present Value Benefit Obligation:
Present Value Of obligation at the beginning of the year
Adjustment to present value

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cos!t

Benefits Paid

Transfer In

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obligation

Present Value Of obligation at the end of the year

Ill. Change in Fair Value Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan Assets beginning of the year
Expected Return On plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Actuarial gain/{loss) on Plan Assets

Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year

IV. Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized

V. Balance Sheet Recognition

Present Value Of Obligalion

Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Liability (assets)

Unrecognised Past Service Cost

Liability (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

VI. Expenses Recognition

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return On plan assets

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year

Past Service Cost

Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

VIl. Movements in the liability recognised in Balance Sheet
Opening net Liability

Adjustment to Present Value

Expenses

Benefils Paid

Transfer In

Closing Net Liability

VIII. Current and Non-Current Liability
Current
Non-current

IX. Experience adjustment
Experience adjustment on Present value of obligation - Loss/(Gain)

Experience adjustment on fair value of Plan assets - Gain/(Loss)
Total experience adjustment

As at As at
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
7.50% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
7.50% p.a. 8.00% p.a.

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)
Ullimate
6% p.a
8% p.a
58 yrs

41,95,003
2,73,023
15,36,447

(10,09,568)

(19,09,300)
30,85,605

12,76,150
57,852

(10.,09,568)
(57,852)
2,66,582

18,561,448

30,85,605
2,66,582
28,19,023

28,198,023

15,36,447
2,73,023
(57,852)
(18,51,448)

(99,83(_))

41,95,003

(99,830)
(10,09,568)

30,85,605

13,865
30,71,740

2,51,614
(57.852)
1,93,762

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)
Ullimate
6% p.a
8% p.a
58 yrs.

41,47,807

3,34,627
20,30,377

(2,23,850)
(20,93,958)
41,95,003
15,00,000

1,11,046
(2,23,850)
(1,11,046)
12,76,150
19,82,912
41,95,003
12,76,150
29,18,853
29,18,853
20,30,377
3,34,627
(1,11,046)
(19,82,912)

2,71,046

41,47,807

2,71,046
(2,23,850)

41,95,003

35,315
41,59,688

6,54,066
(1,11,406)
5,42,660

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation Provident Plan assets; Deficit / (Surplus) on funded status and experience adjustment for earlier

years:-
. Gratuity
Particulars March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
Benefit Obligation 41,47,807 23,85,492 7.85,710
Fair value of Plan Assets 15,00.000 NA NA
Funded status Deficit / (Surplus) 26,47,807 NA NA
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss 172,321 (1,51.755) -
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets Gain/(Loss) (67,500) NA NA
b) During the year the Company has recognised the following amourits in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-
/ TR March 31 2017 | March 31 2016
Particulars /'\g/-—-;rx AN Rupees Rupees
Employers contribution to Provident Fund s I 43,76.992 62,50,308
Employees State Insurance Corporation T AR Y11 3,005 -
Provident Fund Administrative charges | [CPEUEoTE T ] 4,77,392 6.81.244
Total Fil 48,57.389 69,31,552

(22N
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Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Segment Reporting:

Primary Segment:The Business segment has been considered as the Primary Segment for disclosure.
The Company is in the business of providing manpower services. Accordingly there are no reportable
segments as per AS 17 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Geographical Segment:The Company operates in one Geographical segment namely " within India"
and hence no separate information for Geographical Segment wise disclosure required.

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period November 08, 2016
to December 30, 2016

Other
Particulars SBNs denomination Total
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 - 9,871 9,871
Permitted receipts - 1,46,000 1,46,000
Permitted payments - 96,825 96,825
Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 59,046 59,046
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY For the Year For the Year Ended
Ended
March 31, March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
(a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Software License Fees 6,66,875 11,38,680
Foreign Travel 1,67,401 3,02,000
Total 8,34,276 14,40,680

Previous Year Figures
Figures of previous year have been regrouped, re-arranged and reclassified wherever necessary to

conform to the current period's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signatures to Note Number 1 to 24 forming part of the Financial Statements.

For Manian & Rao For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 001983S
Chartered Accountants

Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli N. Ravi Vishwanath
Director Director
DIN: 00151814 DIN: 07332234

Paresh Daga
Partner
Membership No:

Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017 Date : May 17, 2017



MANIAN & RAO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TeamLease Staffing
Services Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March
2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on
our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

(| \\“/ No0.361, ! Floor, 7th Cross,
I Block Jayanagar, Bangalore - 560 011.

Ph: +91 80 26569500

Telefax: +91 80 26569501

Email: contact@manian-rao.com



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2017, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
its Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion ahd to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us: J,;/\

(v )



)

The Company has does not have any pending litigations as on 31t March
2017,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial
statements as regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as
defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated the 8th November, 2016 of
the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8th November 2016 to 30
December 2016. Based on audit procedures performed and the
representations provided to us by the management we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the
Company and as produced to us by the Management.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by

the Central

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure

B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Manian & Rao,

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 0019835

e
Paresh Daga
Partner
M.No. 211468
Place : Bangalore

Date : 17" May 20
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TEAMLEASE
STAFFING SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 001983S
7

Paresh Daga \

Partner

M.No. 211468

‘) ,J'

Place : Bangalore

Date : 17t May 2017



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has no Fixed Assets and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (i) (a),
(b), (c) of the order is not applicable.

As explained to us, the company does not hold any inventories, accordingly reporting
under paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and accordingly to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act with
respect to loans and investments.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public. The Company does not have any unclaimed
deposits hence reporting under clause (v) of the order is not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Income-tax, and Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as
at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2017
on account of disputes S
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(viii)

(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). During the year company has raised money by
issuing compulsorily convertible debentures and In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized the money raised by
way of debentures for the purpose for which they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Manian & Rao,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001983S

, o7
Paresh Daga “ ;
Partner I\
M.No. 211468 NG

Place: Bangalore

Date : 17 May 2017



TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2017
Rupees
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 34,100,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 118,548,196
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 5 797,000,000
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings 6 106,666,617
Other Current Liabilities 7 21,601,496
Short-Term Provisions 8 230,000
Total 1,078,146,309
. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Non-Current Investments 9 973,286,639
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 10 614,847
Short-Term Loans and Advances 11 103,593,195
Other Current Assets 12 651,628
Total : 1,078,146,309
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 001983S
a\WWNN
Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Dirgctor
. DN: 00151814
Paresh Daga ¢ —

Partner {
Membership N i

N. Ravi Vishwanath
Director
DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017 Date : May 17, 2017



Teamlease Staffing Services Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Revenue

Other Income

Total Revenue

Expenses
Finance Costs

Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before Tax
Tax Expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax {net)

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Earnings Per Equity Share (Nominal Value per Equity
share - Rs 10)

Basic and Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees
Notes

13 6,516,295
6,516,295
14 22,154,893
15 1,813,206
23,968,099
(17,451,804)
(17,451,804)

16
(14.99)

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 0019835

Paresh Daga
Partner
Membership No: 211468

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

WA

Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli
Director
Dinf: 00151814

N. Ravi Vishwanath
Director
DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017



TeamLlease Staffing Services Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

A Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Loss before Tax

Adjustments for :

Interest expense on loans from Related Parties
Interest income on loan to related parties

Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Operating income before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Increase in other current liabilities and short term provisions

Cash generated from operations
Taxes (paid) / refunded {net)
Net cash {used in)/generated from Operating Activities (A)

B Cash flow from Investing Activities:

Investment in shares of Subsidiary Company
Repayment of loans and advances by related parties
Loans and advances given to related parties

Interest received on loans to related parties

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

C Cash flow from Financing Activities :

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Proceeds from issue of CCD

Loan received from Related Party

Loan refunded to related party

Interest paid on CCD

Interest paid on loans others

Net cash generated from/{used in) Financing Activities (C)

Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of
In Current Accounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
* Refer Note 10.
Notes

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the

Accounting Standard-3 on "Cash Flow Statements".

2 Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo / income.

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

{17,451,804)

6,593,030
(6,516,295)
15,561,863
(1,813,206)

2,825,819

1,012,613
(651,628)
360,985

(968,286,639)
286,705,659
(388,200,000}
4,417,441
{1,065,363,539)

170,100,000
797,000,000
388,700,000
(284,500,000}
(1,556,186)
(4,126,413)
1,065,617,401

614,847

614,847

614,847

614,847

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001983S

Paresh Daga
Partner (/S
Membership No: 211468

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 17, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashok Kumar Nedu.rumalli

N. Ravi Vishwanath
Director
DIN: 07332234

Place : Bengaluru

Date : May 17, 2017




TeamlLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. General Information

TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited (the "Company") was incorporated as a HR Services Company on July 04, 2016.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
i. Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 till the Standards of Accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central
Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards
notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to
comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Schedule !l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities.

iii. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements and the reported income
and expenses during the reported period. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which
results are known or materialized.

jiii. Tangible Assets:

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

ltems of fixed assets that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value
and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, losses arising from retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at
cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. The residual value of all assets is assumed as five percent of the original cost of the asset.

iv. Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

V. Impairment of Assets:

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible or intangible) may be
impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash
generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made.

Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount
is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an
asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Vi. Investments:

Investments are classified into long term investments and current investments. Investments that are readily realisable and are
intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, are classified as current investments. All other investments are
classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long term
investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the
value of investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

vii. Revenue Recoghnition:

Revenue from Manpower services is accounted on accrual basis on performance of the service agreed in the Contract /
Mandate Letter between the Company and its customer.

Other Income:

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Interest on tax refunds is recognized on actual receipt of the refund money or on communication from Income Tax department,
whichever is earlier.
Dividend: Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Profit/ (Loss) arising from the sale of investments is recognized on trade date basis; net of expenses. The cost of investment is
computed on weighted average basis.

viii. Employee Benefits:

a) Provident Fund

Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations,
apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Contribution as required by the Statute made to the Government Provident Fund is debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has a defined contribution plan for post employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund. Under the Provident
Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government administered provident fund on behalf of the employees. The Company has
no further obligation beyond making the contributions. Contributions to Provident Fund are made in accordance with the statute,
and are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

b) Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme (the “Gratuity Plan”) is a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees in accordance with the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’'s salary and the tenure of
employment. The Company'’s liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the end of each year.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

A
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TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

ix. Current and Deferred Tax:

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the
year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each
Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax
assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

X. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

xi. Leases:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the terms of the
agreement and the effect of lease equalisation is not given considering the increment is on account of inflation factor.

xii. Segment Reporting

The Company operates only in one segment, hence segmental reporting is not applicable.

xiii. Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Xiv. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's
earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3.2

3.4

Teamlease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017
and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

SHARE CAPITAL As At
March 31, 2017

Rupees
Authorised
3,500,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 35,000,000
Total 35,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
3,410,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 34,100,000
Total 34,100,000
Reconciliation of the number of shares

As at March 31, 2017

Equity Shares Number of Rupees

Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year = -
Add: Issued during the year 3,410,000 34,100,000
Balance as at the end of the year 3,410,000 34,100,000

Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per
share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shares held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares

in the Company.

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2017
Number of % holding
Shares
TeamLease Services Limited "TLSL"(inctuding its 3,410,000 100%
nominee)*

* Holding Company since incorporation
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TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Securities Premium Account

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add:Issue of Equity Shares

Balance as at the end of the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add : Profit/(Loss) for the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Total

Long Term Borrowings

Unsecured - From Related Party (Refer Note: 5.1 below)

No. of Units
9% Series A Compulsory Convertible Debentures 686
payable annually of FV of Rs 10 lakhs each
9% Series B Compulsory Convertible Debentures payable 111

annually of FV of Rs 10 lakhs each
Total

As At
March 31, 2017

Rupees

136,000,000

136,000,000

(17,451,804)

(17,451,804)

118,548,196

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

686,000,000

111,000,000

797,000,000

On December 30, 2016, the Company alloted to Teamleases Services Limited "TLSL",
3,400,000 equity shares @ Rs 50 per share (Face Value of Rs 10 per share) and 686 Series
"A" Compulsory Convertible Debentures ('CCD'} of Rs 1,000,000 each bearing interest @9%
payable annually. On March 30, 2017, the Company further allotted 111 Series "B" CCD of
Rs 1,000,000 each bearing interest @9% payable annually. The debentures are convertible

on or before 10 years from the date of allotment.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Unsecured Loans - From TLSL (holding company)
Total

The above loan is repayable on demand carrying interest rate @ 9%

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors for expenses
Interest accrued but not due on CCD
Statutory dues

Sundry Creditors for Investments
Total

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Audit Fees Payable
Total

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

106,666,617

106,666,617

As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees

765,565
14,005,677
1,830,254
5,000,000

21,601,496

As At
March 31, 2017

Rupees

230,000

230,000
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11.2

TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Face As at March 31, 2017

Value Number Rupees
Other than Trade Investments (At Rupees
Cost) {Refer Note 9.1 below)
Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiaries (Fully
paid-up)
ASAP Info Systems Private Limited 10 85,020 570,151,366
NichePro Technologies Private 10 6,889,210 320,930,253
Limited
Keystone Business Solutions 10 42,627 82,205,020
Private Limited
Total 7,016,857 973,286,639
Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments
-At Book Value 973,286,639

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company acquired ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
("ASAP"), a company incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 w.e.f. September 01, 2016 at an
agreed consideration of Rs. 670,000,000. This includes contingent consideration up to Rs.
100,500,000 lakhs depending upon the performance of ASAP and the same if any, will be
appropriately accounted for at the time of certainty of the amount i.e. as at August 31, 2017. The
control of ASAP got transferred on completion of transaction on September 01, 2016.

Further, the Company signed a definitive agreement on September 20, 2016 to acquire Nichepro
Technologies Private Limited ("Nichepro"), a company incorporated under Companies Act, 1956
at an agreed cash consideration of Rs. 295,000,000. The control of Nichepro got transferred on
completion of transaction on October 01, 2016.

On January 16, 2017, the Company signed a definitive agreement to acquire Keystone Business
Solutions Private Limited ("Keystone"), a company incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 at an
agreed consideration of Rs.82,000,000. The control of Keystone got transferred to the Company
on February 01, 2017.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees
(a) Cash And Cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts 614,847
Total 614,847
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees
Unsecured considered good
Loans and Advances to Related Parties 103,593,195
Total 103,593,195
The breakup of Loans and Advances to Related
Parties is as below: As At
March 31, 2017
Rupees
Loan to Related Parties (Refer Note 11.2 below):
ASAP Info Systems Private Limited 1,494,341
Nichepro Technologies Private Limited 102,098,854
Total 103,593,195

The above loans to subsidiary companies were given for the purpose of meeting business

requirements of the respective companies.

QN

(SR



12

13

14

15

15.1

16

TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TDS Receivables
Total

OTHER INCOME

Interest on loan to related parties
Total

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Interest on Loans
Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note 15.1 below)
Bank Charges

Demat Charges

Legal and Professional

Filing Fees

Rates and Taxes

Preliminary Expenses Written Off

Total

Auditors' Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees

Other Fees

Out of Pocket Expenses
Total

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity shareholders

Weighted average number of Equity Shares:
- For Basic and Diluted

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Earning per Share (EPS) {In Rupees)
- Basic and Diluted {Face Value of Rs. 10 each)

As At

March 31, 2017
Rupees
651,628

651,628

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Rupees
6,516,295

6,516,295

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees
15,561,863
6,593,030

22,154,893

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

346,873
230
5,750
776,365
14,000
618,588
51,400

1,813,206

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2017
Rupees

201,250
28,750
115,000
1,873

346,873

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2017
Rupees

(17,451,804)

1,164,244
10

(14.99)

An




Teamlease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit

and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017
17. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

(a) Related parties where control exists:
Nature of Relationship

Holding Company (Refer Note: 3.4}

Subsidiary Company (Refer Note: 9.1)

{b) Other Related Parties:

Non-Executive Directors

¢. Transactions with Related Parties:

Particulars

Issue of equity shares - Initial Subscription
TeamlLease Services Limited

Right Issue of equity shares
TeamLease Services Limited

Right Issue of CCD
TeamLease Services Limited

Reimbursement of Expenses:

Teamlease Services Limited

Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Total

Interest on CCD
TeamLease Services Limited

Interest paid on CCD
Teamlease Services Limited

Loan Received
TeamLease Services Limited

Loan Repaid
TeamLease Services Limited

Interest on Loan received
TeamLease Services Limited

Interest Repaid
TeamLlease Services Limited

TeamLease Services Limited ('TLSL')
*Holding company w.e.f July 04, 2016 i.e. since incorporation

ASAP Info Systems Private Limited ('ASAP')
NichePro Technologies Private Limited ('NTPL')
Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited ('"KBSPL')

Mrs. Shilpa Kamlesh Avarsekar* (w.e.f November 08, 2016)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli* (w.e.f July 04, 2016}
Mr. Narayan Swamy Ravi Vishwanath* (w.e.f July 04, 2016)

March 31, 2017

100,000

170,000,000

797,000,000

1,984,886
205,020
2,189,906

15,561,863

1,556,186

388,700,000

284,500,000

6,593,030

4,126,413



TeamLease Staffing Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit

and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars

Loan Given

-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
Total

Loan repaid during the year:
-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
Total

Interest on loan given:

-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
Total

Interest received on Loan given:
-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
Total

OUTSTANDING BALANCES

Sundry Creditors for Expenses
-TeamlLease Services Limited

Loan Payable:
TeamLease Services Limited

CCD Payable:
TeamLease Services Limited

Interest on CCD Payable:
TeamLease Services Limited

Investments
-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited
-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited

-Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Total Investments

Receivables - Loan

-Nichepro Technologies Private Limited

-ASAP Info Systems Private Limited
Total Receivables

March 31, 2017

140,200,000
248,000,000
388,200,000

40,200,000
246,505,659
286,705,659

4,689,049
1,827,246
6,516,295

2,590,195
1,827,246
4,417,441

764,865

106,666,617

797,000,000

14,005,677

320,930,253
570,151,366

82,205,020
973,286,639

102,098,854
1,494,341
103,593,195
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Teamlease Staffing Services Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period November 08, 2016 to December
30, 2016

Particulars SBNs Other Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 - - B
Permitted receipts - - -
Permitted payments - - =
Amount deposited in Banks - - =
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 = e =

The Board of directors during its meeting held on March 22, 2017 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of ASAP
and Nichepro with the Company with appointed date as January 01, 2017. The Company is in the process of filing
the merger petition with National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai.

As per Section 129 (3) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the Company is exempted from
preparing and presenting consolidated financial statements being an unlisted wholly owned subsidiary of
TeamlLease Services Limited which files consolidated financial statements with the Registrar in compliance with
apolicable accounting standards.

Previous Year Figures

The Company was incorporated on July 04, 2016, hence the numbers are for the period from July 04, 2016 to
March 31, 2017.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Signatures to Note Number 1 to 21 forming part of the Financial Statements.

For Manian & Rao - Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 001983S
\
'.’

Paresh Daga » Ashok Kumar Nedurumalli N. Ravi Vishwanath
Partner BN & Director Director
Membership No: 211468, o)\ DIN: 00151814 DIN: 07332234

i.
Place : Bengaluru _ / Place : Bengaluru

Date : May 17, 2017 A% Date : May 17, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS
TEAMLEASE EDUCATION FOUNDATION

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TEAMLEASE EDUCATION

FOUNDATION ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3150 March, 2017, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatery information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made there under.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and falr view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March, 2017, its profit and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

4] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which Lo the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with hy this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

[Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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g

h)

On the hasis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March
2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31# March 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure A.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact the

financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
as at March 31, 2017.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2017.

iv.  The Company did not have any holdings or dealings in Specified Bank Notes during
the period from 8t November, 2016 to 30t December, 2016-Refer Note -20 to the
financial statements. These disclosures are in accordance with the books of account
maintained by the Company.

The Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act is not applicable
during the year as per the information obtained being a Company licensed to operate under
Sec B of the Companies Act, 2013,

For Gnaneshwar & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0085445

Gnameshwar M B g
Proprietor

Membership No: 207475

Flace: Bangalore
Date: June 14, 2017
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Teamlease Education
Foundation [“the Company”} as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company'’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India [ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

Or errar,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting iz a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relizbility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial contral over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in reasenable detail, accu rately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company: and (3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation af the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial contrel ever financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gnaneshwar & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratiom\No: 0085445

oy - o
Grianeshwar M B =

Froprietor ;
Membership No: 207475 :
Place: Bangalore

Date: [une 14, 2017



TeamlLease Education Foundation

Balance Sheet as ot March 31, 2017

[Amoust Tn fs. |
At 3l A at
L Particuilars Mot Mo March 31, 2047
L. EQUITY AMD LTARILITIES
Sharehoiders Furds
Shane Capts 1 1,000, 00 1,507, 00
Hesarses gl Surphes A (L8805, 325, [3.54,28, 103
Mo Current Lishilities
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| Currenl Liakabilies
tear cument liskikbes & 5 19 TEN 1,141,484
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Kon Current Insvest il i 3 00 QT AL LG
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~TeamLease Education Foundation

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

[&mount in Bs.}

S 1
Particalars Mota Mo Far thn yaar Ended | For the Year Bnded
o _ Mprch 38, 2003
Hpwerizs Prisitt QAL 12 1,00, B, 00 27,08, 000,00
Hhar [nenimme L3 1 B0 20 505 1,30.05 1&k
AL 301,15, 568 157,108,165
ExDeRses I
Employes benehl aagenses i4 2,60, 359
Finance Costs I3 186,55, 993 1.4K1,33,036
Othazr axprrdes i3 3,49, 445 51,137,187
Trairang Frpences ir : o103 a0 21,27 585
Tatal Expenses o) 2,81,08,418 1,84,10,582
rnmmua &B a 671 2,98, 583 |
Tayx Expenses B90 57,00
Prafit Tor the year 3,781 EEEI
Esmings per equily sharg of face value of Rs. LT eadh;
(1] Bl & Daluled i8 0.38 24.3%
1-23

The Motes forms am Integral part of the Finaneial SIaements

Por Gnaneslwar & Co
Chartered Acosinlans
Fi stiation Mo, -0

L
|.?

neshwar M B Pt
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Al ;
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For and on behall af the Baard of Directors

(shobors

Achak Kismar Nedurumalls
Director
DM : $215161+

Flace :[anglanre
Db § Juwes :I-l-; 2047

Mantsh Sabharwal
Director
BN o GOReaea0




Teamlease Education Foundation
Cash Flow Statement for the peried ended March 31, 2017

A

Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Prafit hefore Tax

Adjustments for @
Preliminary Expenses Wnitten off
Interest Income on loan to related parties

Interest Income on athers
Interest an Incamie Tax Refund

Cperating Profit f {Loss) befere working capital changes

Adjustment for chanaes in working capital:
[Drecrease) f Increase in olher cement labdities
[Tcrease) f Decrease in long term loans and advanoes

[Incraasay / Dacreasa in Other Correnk Astets
(Increase) £ Decrease in Bon current Assek

Cash used in operations
Taxes Faid

Met cash used in Operating Activities [A)

Cash flow from Investing Activities:

Interest Income on loan to related parties

Interest Idoame i athars

Interest an Incorme Tax Befund

Net cash generated from / (used in ) Investing
Activitias (B

Cash flow from Financing Activities :

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings

Met increase in cash and cash eqguivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalont at the beginning of the vear
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Cash and Cash Eaulvalent comprises of
Balances with Banks - Currend Accounmt

Cash and Cazh Equivalent at the end of the year

MNotes
1 The above cash flow statement has been prepaced under the “Indirect Method® a5 set auk in the Accounting Standard-3 on

d

"Cash Flow Statements”.

For the peirad ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Rupreies
4,671
(1,7, 58 456)
(10,130

(1,80,23.918)

{44,64,323)
114,25,40,591%
¥9.53,948

(15,70, 74,884)
(890}

(15.70.75,774)

1,79, 58 456
13
180,28 588
14,73.00,000
14, 73,00,000

BI1.52. 814

H2.52,814

H32.52.414

52.52.814

March 31, 2016

Rupees
299,583
63,240
{99 56,138
{30.33.165)
{21,049}

{1,26,47,527)

9, 72,901
(2.86,95.847)

(15235500
(3,00, 00,000

(7.37.96,023}
[ 57 06

(7, 37,38,937)

09.56,138.00
ILAIIAE00
21,049

1,30,10,350
5,72,87,733
5,72,87,733
[35.55,026)
315,55.026

(000}

Previous yeac's figures have been regrauped and reclassificd wherever necessary bo conform to the cwrrent year

classification.
The nates e integral part of the Fimanceal Statements,

This 15 thie Cash Flow Skatement ceferred ta in oer report of even date.

For Gnaneshwar & Co
Chartered Accountants

C“?&E hak

Firm Registration No. - §085445 p A
s i _ L I |
! o L= | e
Grnaneshvar B B [ '._.:_'\“ =
Prapristar ot

Place; Bangalorg

Gabe; June 14, 2017

[rirector
DIN : BOLS1EL4

Place: Gangalore

y Ashok Kumar Medurumalli

Membership No.207475 | | f I e

Dabe: Jung 14, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Sabharda

Derector
DIN ¢ DOrE2e01



TeamLease Education Foundation

NOTES FORMING PARLT OF THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOH THE PERICD EMDED MARCH 31, 3017

3, SHAHE CAPITAL

{Amecamnt in Bx)
A et

[Pariculars Ag at
31-Har-27F i -Har-26
Autlcized
§, GO, 000 Eguity vhares of B3, 10 each b, 00, 00,000 L. Ok, N
'|“|E£E !IEDIHD

Esdued, Suliscribed and Pakl-Up
10,000 Baguty Shares of Rs. 10 each foly paid up 1,201,000 1,00, 030

160,008 100,600 |

4,1, Each hotdes of egeily shares & entabed 10 oee wobe por share. The Company has fol Geclarsd any dividend in the ourrent year,

3.7, Detsls of shanes held by the shancholdars holding mors thas 5% @ the aggregace sharas in the Company.

E Shares i nack An o4 F1-Far- 2017 b Az az 11-Har-2018
Pz ol the aharebolder Mursher of Shares B il dimg HMusnbor of | % holdieg
aeiwirEn Limbed Cinciuding Bs nosen 100, 0 100 DS 10,000 & (1. [H1 %y
10,000 18000 10,000
A, The ecancibation ol B nusnipar of nugskandkng s ab Docernber 31, 2016 b sat oul tekow;
Partizulars A5 at Ai wt
LI
Mumber of shanad 85 &1 [Fa DEQNnang of T year 100, D
: Sharss ali I back during the yesr C
|_rH shaAres as Al e e of e pear B D0
4. RESCRVES ARD SURPLUS
[Farticulars s at
Xi-Mar-17
Siwphkis- Opening Balance (1,04, 88,105
Akl Pt peofe after by T { & of Prold an Laas 37
LL] i
5. LIMG TERM B RRW TGS
{Rimant in R§.
TS s
3n:Mara7 31:Mar-16
15.53,34,707 21,25, 5%, 07|
SR R DT — R
& OTHER CLRAFHNT LIARTLITIES
)  {Amunt in M5, )
s at LLE. 1
3
Tandry CredRos for Enpinses [hels B R T 43,05,432
Bk O et . &0, 10,845
Proveskss b Delslandirg Eupentes Lo ks rl ADL G
Ciiries & T 11 TR H 18, L0
L — £, 25,763 Bl
6.4 Su Creditors for b — [ Aot
Pa Az ak
Fi=Mar=17
Miraqe Desigrers b Prinfers Ty
Dhootas Manpewer Services Pt Lbd 18,384
Stirsdhi (Hfice Automagicn L, ang
Saltva M and ConsRing Pyt Lbd 3,34,682
TERmiLTd s E.Eluwlll'llld 153“."!-1
54,53,701
F.MON CURRENT INVESTHENT
= {Amaunt in Bs.}
Particulars Ag at Ar at
A3-Sar-17F di-Har-16
I Contralind Spcul e pesa ey
- TeamLaase Suils Usiversoy N 1ll_:- J!EE!M!DE
g, Lofeh TERM LOANS AND ADYWAMTES
[Assaung in Bs, ]
Pasticiulare Az at iz at
l 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
30,7540, 887 16,5052, 151
#0074 13,5249
A7 3
ST 30,050 543 _
". '.l"



.OTHER MON CURRENT ASSETS

|mm:u-- As at As at
Sl-Har-i7 31-Mar-16
iminary Expenses - R4, 240
|I,|:-5$_I Freamirary Exp wrilben off [E3,240]
10, CASH AMD BDAMNK BALANCES
{Amaount in Rs.]
[Particulars A5 ak As at
31-Mar-17 J1-Mar-16
Cash &nd Cash Equivalents
In Current Acopunts 31,52 814
— §2,52,414 :
11, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Amount (n R )
[Particulars Ax At A% at
21-Mar-17
Irtenest receivalle . 1,597,103
ThS Begenabdn 7,95 844 15,58 448
Prepand Expenses 5,159 7.B5%
Sgvice Tak Inpat 386,304 3H7. BT
Cther Deposils 10,000 -
Total 31,597,309 i,01,51,257
12, REVENLIE FROM OPERATIONS
pAmount in Rs.j
[Particulars. Far the year Ended | For the year Ended
siMar1? | SiMar1s
Incpenie From Skills 1,100,854, I?,ﬂ-ﬁ,ﬂ%
Toatal 1&.5.5#11 !?lﬂ_ EEE“
13, OTHER TMCOME
{Amount in Bs. ]
Particulars For tha year Ended | For the year Ended
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-186
Interast Incorme an koan to related parties 1, F9.58,456 98,87,324
Irtgrest Incoomss an athers = 30,96, ™30
Interest on Income Tax Refund 70,132 21,051

I,50,28,558

14, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPFENSES

3, 30.95,188 )

{Amount in RE. )

[Farticulars

For the year Ended

Far the year Ended

31-Mar-17 31-
Salaries 1,29, 000
Stafl Wellare Expenses = 132,359
Tatal = 260,359
15. FINAMCE COSTS
U [Amount in Rs.)
ulars For the year Engded | For the year Ended
Il-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Imterest Expengeg 1,86.55 763 1,00,35,006
Bank Charges 230 oy =
Tatal ) %!_!.'_E.;‘QH' 1,00,33,036
16, OTHER EXPENSES
{&mount in R}

Farticulars

For the year Ended

For the year Ended

31-Mar-17 El-mrhl!

Rabes B axes 13,958 &L, 1T
Traweling and Conveyance - 1,060,490
Auddors Remuneration [Refer 16.1 below) G0, Q00 A4, 075
Communication costs . 5, 10,445
Legal and prafesional M 2.56 39 £, 16,446
Adwerteermnent and Bissingss Fromatian - a0, 0%
Printing & Statipneny = 223,166
Repairs & Mainienancs = i,27,894
Subrsripleon B Hembership 2,700 2,700
Prediminary Expenses 'Wrilten ol ¥ 63,240
R & M Others 1k, 39 -
Insurance Charges - B, (B4
Postage B Coumer - 478,415
Boaks & Perkdicals - 13
Hagisratan Charges 5 00, 000
Channed Partrer . 40,115
Hire Charges - 11,3199
Galary Contract - Gl 121
Hscellaneous Expenses - /703
Total 349,445 0 ]

:



L L]

P o ymar vl |

[ R e e e

o 1is s [ |
st

3

1% Briind Fariy Sikaas

A Maiei of RELHED FEtia sud Savaee of Belsiseseap

1. whee Coserel Feeon
armid CTLA

P U STHCT I by (g gy dyeiy L

(R - mdey
T B DR
il o ramooss | s oo | ekl NI
i 1SR | LiEARIe I- [t N ]
LT dl IR AN [ REd. ] | LRI LI
T HEIL | L RN E L]
rarrrsd P 10T T arvea 3 AT
A B Lo e e | L (AR TEE] IS E BEAME AT RN
imen Bypyyrard LiLTS 5 S 3 L
Fonae P, Fad gL ELim e - AEITG
irrd ws e Tink i 18 e ] LI
iy Fupenrnay A 138 7LEW
laimi el nbriaid @ LB S0 DR Ay LMl | BRTHAK LR
[ PP TON Fotet o] AR
Bulinrrs mwiardma ol e Gibr 484
e b na e B S |0 T Tl ST JF]WEA T
wEmne [ew T Sl B O
ey arsl anvarars i rmaied ket T arTe4emr | O ELE
i avel gdvaraws in reisied matly TN LT FERSLY
P it il e i o o Py ek denng Fa s in ] ol el b it O 1 Pl Pami
. Dgimils of Lprvaled Ras P [REHI bl darag rhe e =, reas
Jeru v e e Hr .- s
Plesiwy ik b il Gsdh FLID 0EE
0 SN HD R A A L D B
Th [ ] i b Eri HES Tom arm Ll
33, TATEE M TNE D
i R e s e b e G b - 4 et wak L]

0. EREEPR THAR T F
Frvaes i s A s b e g e

e i s

Firir  Besietiid
Buts - b 1 Gl7

Cltbnss

s L
Seerike
G ; mrv



TEAMLEASE EDMICATION FOUNDATION
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2017

CIN: UB0S03MH2011NPL219138

Mote 1 &2

1.

an
1.

fii.

Backpground of the company

TEAMLEASE EDUCATION FOUNDATION is a Scetion 25 Company incorporated on 271 June
2011, The objective of the Company is to promote & sponsor Educational Institutions including
Universities dedicated to the inculeation of domain specific, workplace relevant and life related
skilla and competences for enhancing emplovability, work culture, enhanced productiity,
economic development, social harmony and secial life through offer of technology supported,
industry relevant and low-eost academic Programmes with employment at the heart of academic

offerings.
Significant accounting policies
Basis for preparation of Accounts:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis of accounting. The comparny
adopts the accrual system of accounting and the finanecial stalements eonform with the generally
accepted aceounting principles provailing in India and the relevant provisions of the Companics

Act, 2013 and other relevant applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956 .
1lse of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and
assumplions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilitiee) a2 on the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses during
the reported period. Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the finaneial

statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the vear.
Provision for taxation for the period is ascertained on the basis of assessable profits computed in

accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
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TEAMLEASE EDUCATION FOUNDATION
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2007

CIN: UB0903MH2011NPL219138

b. Deferred tax is reeognised, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred lax
asset, on timing difference being the difference between taxable income and aceounting income

that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
iv. Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assels :

All known labilities, wherever material, are provided for and liabilities which are material
and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as
contingent and disclosed by way of notes on accounts,

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has present obligation as a result of past event,
it is probable that an outflow of respurces will be required 1o settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions ave not discounted to its present value and
are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet
dale. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimates,

v. Earnings per Share

In determining the earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax. The
number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share i3 the weighted sverage number
of shares outstanding during the period.

vi. Preliminary expenses

Preliminary expenses comprise of expenditure ineurred in connection with the incorporation

of the Company and the same will be written off over a period of 5 years,

vil. Impairment of Assets

The carrving amounts of assels are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal § external factors. An asset is weated as impaired
when the carrving cost of assels exceeds its recoverable value, An impairment loss is charged
to Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
recoverable amount 35 greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value im uso, the eshimated PITERS SAEN TIOWE PR MEGHUIRATE T TEWE PPRRETL VILLNE, A DERILLSEY
recognized impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in

cireumslances.,
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TEAMLEASE EDUCATION FOUNDATION
Notes to the Finaneinl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

CIN: UB0903MH2011NPL219138

viii.  Borrowing Costs

.

Borrawing costs include interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment 1o the interest cost. Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition.
construction or production of qualifving assets, which are assets that take a substantial
period of time o get ready For their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Skills and Development is recognized on acerual basis upon execution
of the service.

Other Income:

Interest income on Interest on intercrop deposits  recognized on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Interest on tax refunds is recognized on actual receipt of the refund money or on

communication from Income Tax department, whichever is carlier
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